










































































































































 

13 

          SR: 226:16   Revised 11/17/2016 

 
2017 Committee Meeting Calendar - DRAFT 

 

Facilities/ 
Pooling 

Committees 
9:00 am 

LEC PPC 
Committee 
10:00 am 

at Lodi 

Public 
Benefits 

Committee 
10:00 am 

 
 

Finance 
Committee 
10:00 am 

Utility 
Directors 
9:00 am 

*Legal 
Committee 

L&R Affairs 
Committee 
12:00 pm 

Executive 
Committee 

8:30 am 
 & 

**Commission 

Meeting 
9:30 am 

TBD January 9 January 26  January 12   
January 19 

Sacramento 

February 1 February 13 February 16 February 8 February 9  February 22 February 23 

March 1 March 13 March 16  
March 8/10 

Retreat  
Healdsburg 

  March 23 

April 5 April 10 April 13  April 6   April 20 

May 3 May 8 May 18 May 10 May 11  May 24 May 25 

June 7 June 12 June 15  June 15   
June 29 
Ukiah 

July 5 July 10 July 20  July 13   
July 27 

Murphys 

August 2 August 14 August 17 August 9 August 10  August 23 August 24 

September 6 September 11 
September 

21 
 September 14 

September 27  
Napa 

September 27 
Napa 

September 
29 

Napa 

October 4 
October 9 

Columbus Day 
October 19  October 12   October 26 

November 1 November 13 November 16 November 8 November 9  November 29 November 30 

December 6 December 11 December 7  December 14   
No December 

Meeting 

 
*Legal Committee meets once a year during NCPA’s Annual Conference – Special Committee meetings may be held as required. 

**Commission Packet mailed the Thursday prior to the meeting date. 
Unless noted otherwise, Commission meetings will be held at NCPA’s Roseville office. 

Commission meetings highlighted in blue – potential conference call meeting dates being considered for pilot program. 
 

NCPA 101 Presentation: January 17, 2017, Embassy Suites, Sacramento 
NCPA Strategic Issues Conference:  January 17-19, 2017, Embassy Suites, Sacramento 

NCPA/NWPPA Federal Policy Conference:  April 23-26, 2017, Washington, D.C. 
NCPA Annual Conference:  September 27-29, 2017, Silverado Resort, Napa 













































































































Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 1 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

Merged into one log record series. Changed 
minor category from Administration to Logs. 
Changed retention period from SUP+3 to 
CY+5 to match up with other logs.

Administrative Administration Records and Archives Current guidelines and indices of active and inactive records systems, 
including microfilm and electronic file storage information

SUP+3 CY+5 Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines

Merged into one calendar record series. Administrative Calendar Brown Act Meeting Schedules Brown Act Committees: Facilities, Legal, Finance, L&R, Executive, PPC CY+2 Y GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California Guideline. 
Administrative Reference Record; maintain while current

Merged all calendars/schedules into one 
calendar record series. Updated short 
description.

Administrative Calendar Calendars/Schedules
All Commission, Committee, or staff meeting schedules and calendars; 
includes individual calendars in Outlook. CY+2 CY+2 Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California Guideline. 
Administrative Reference Record; maintain while current

Merged into one calendar record series. Administrative Calendar Commission Meeting Schedules Commission only CY+2 Y GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California Guideline. 
Administrative Reference Record; maintain while current

Merged into one calendar record series. Administrative Calendar non Brown Act Meeting Schedules
Non Brown Act Committees: Pooling, UDs, ROC, RMC, Public Benefits, 
Safety, EARC, Clearance, Electrical Safety, Quarterly Safety, Plant 
Safety, Coordinated Operations Group, External Affairs, CMOC

CY+2 Y
GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California Guideline. 
Administrative Reference Record; maintain while current

Updated short description and legal citation 
to incorporate other completed forms.

Administrative Completed Forms Completed Forms

Completed forms not captured in another record series; some include 
request for credit card and other administrative forms related to 
Administrative policies & procedures, waiver of liability, declaration of 
excess for assets less than $5,000, community relations, etc.
Completed forms not captured in another record series; some include 
request for credit card and other administrative forms related to 
Administrative policies & procedures, waiver of liability, declaration of 
excess, etc.

AC+5 AC+5 Y GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California Guideline

Added legal citation. Administrative Completed Forms Emergency Contact Form Completed forms; information is put into ADP SUP SUP N 64 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 317 (1981).

Updated retention period, record series and 
description. 

Administrative Completed Forms HR & Technology Forms Forms completed by employees that tie to HR and technology policies 
and/or procedures.

T+2 T+3 Y GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California Guideline

Administrative Completed Forms Vacation Requests Forms - completed Completed vacation requests CY+2 CY+2 Y GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California Guideline

Merged into one contact list record series. Administrative Contact List Advertising/Hiring Sources Administrative record; no retention citation, keep while active SUP+2 Y GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California Guideline. 
Administrative Reference Record; maintain while current

Merged into one contact list record series. Administrative Contact List Audit Mailing List Audit RFP mailing lists SUP+2 Y GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California Guideline. 
Administrative Reference Record; maintain while current

Merged into one contact list record series. Administrative Contact List Committee Contact Lists Committee members listing of names SUP+2 Y GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California Guideline. 
Administrative Reference Record; maintain while current

Updated short description and record series 
to include all contact lists and rosters; 
updated retention.

Administrative Contact List Financial Advisors Contact Lists & Rosters

Contact lists, including those associated with potential vendors for 
RFPs, RFQs, RFIs, audits, & financial advisors; NCPA Roster of all 
members of the Commission, Utility Directors, Committees and NCPA 
Management staff; advertising and hiring sources; etc.
Contact lists associated with potential financial advisors

SUP+2 TEMP Y
GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California Guideline. 
Administrative Reference Record; maintain while current

Merged into one contact list record series. Administrative Contact List NCPA Directory (aka Member Roster) Roster of all Members of Commission, Utility Directors, Committees and 
NCPA Management staff

SUP+2 Y GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California Guideline. 
Administrative Reference Record; maintain while current

Merged into one contact list record series. Administrative Contact List Procurement Contact Lists
Contact lists associated with potential vendors to send Request for 
Proposals, Request for Qualifications, or Request for Information SUP+2 Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California Guideline. 
Administrative Reference Record; maintain while current

Merged into one log record series. Administrative Logs Chron File Log Log of correspondence maintained in chronological order by year CY+5 Y GC 34090; 2 year minimum;  State of California Guidelines

Updated short description to include various 
types of logs merged into this record series; 
updated record series from "General Logs 
not in another Retention Policy listing". 

Administrative Logs
General Logs and Matrices
General Logs not in another Retention 
Policy listing

Includes all general logs and matrices; may include inventory logs, 
visitor logs, warranty logs, tracking matrices, test results log, chron file 
log, personal protection equipment log, transmission line log, records 
and archives list, etc. This does not include debugging logs when 
troubleshooting software, which are not a record.
Includes all general logs not already captured in another record series

CY+5 CY+5 Y

Chron File, Records & Archives: GC 34090; 2 year minimum; 
State of California Guidelines;
Test Results Log: 40 CFR 262.40(c); test results; 3 year 
minimum;
Transmission Line Log: 18 CFR § 125.3(14)(a-b); 3 year 
minimum



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 2 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

Removed; NCPA procedures do not use a 
log.

Administrative Logs Manifests Log CY+5 Y 40CFR 262.40(a); 3 year minimum

Merged into one log record series. Administrative Logs Personal Protection Equipment Logs In CMMS CY+5 N

Merged into one log record series. Administrative Logs Record of Test Results Test results from waste testing for hazardous materials CY+5 Y 40 CFR 262.40©; test results; 3 year minimum

Merged into one log record series. Administrative Logs Substation and transmission line logs In logger/logbook; Includes substation and transmission logs, Operator's 
daily logs

CY+5 N 18 CFR § 125.3(14)(a-b); 3 year minimum

Administrative Records Destruction Certificates of Destruction Includes list of records destroyed and destruction certificates PERM PERM Y
GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines; 
Records Management Disposition Certification, permanent; 
Permanent for destruction tracking purposes.

Added short description, legal citation, and 
retention period. Administrative Security Incident Log Logs related to a security incident

Logs related to a security incident. A security incident includes those that 
affect the reliability of the bulk electric system and business continuity. It 
is defined as continuous attempts to gain unauthorized access to a 
system or its data (whether successful or unsuccessful); unwanted 
disruption or denial of service; unauthorized use of a system for the 
processing or storage of data; changes to system hardware, firmware or 
software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction or 
consent; unauthorized access to facilities, significant damage to 
property, or injury to a person on site.

PERM CY+7 Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum.

Merged into one long term agreement record 
series. Agreement

Balancing Authority 
Agreements Balancing Authority Agreements Includes RMR, MSSA, WAPA 2948A, Balancing Authority Agreements AE+15 Y

18 CFR 125.3(3); 4 years after expiration of Agreement or until 
conclusion of any disputes pertaining to such Agreements; CCP 
337; CCP 343; Statutes of limitations; 4 year limitation; Original 
in Safe Deposit. 

Merged into one financial agreement record 
series. Agreement Banking Banking Agreements Agreements for regular banking activities, merchant accounts, etc. AE+10 Y

18 CFR 125.3(3); 4 years after expiration of Agreement or until 
conclusion of any disputes pertaining to such Agreements

Merged into one short term agreement record 
series. Agreement

Commodity 
Agreement

Service and Product Agreements 
(commodity purchase Agreements)

Agreements and related documents related to commodity purchases for 
services and products; DCS1 AE+5 Y

18 CFR 125.3(3); 4 years after expiration of Agreement or until 
conclusion of any disputes pertaining to such Agreements; CCP 
337; CCP 343; Statutes of limitations; 4 year limitation; Original 
in Safe Deposit. 

Merged into one financial agreement record 
series.

Agreement Debt Agreement Bond Agreements/Revenue Bonds Original on CD; Final bond documentation;  pricing book, official 
statement, agreement, letters (authorizations), resolutions

AE+10 Y GC34090; 2 year minimum; CCP 337.5 Statute of limitations; 
State of California Guidelines; 10 years after closure

Merged into one financial agreement record 
series. Agreement Debt Agreement Letters of Credit, Liquidity Facilities

Agreements related to letters of credit or other liquidity products related 
to variable rate debt issuances AE+10 Y

GC 34090; 2 years minimum; GC 43900-43903; Destruction 
guidelines for bonds; CCP 336a;  Statutes of limitations, 6 years 
after expiration; FC 30210; State of California Guidelines; 
Maintain10 years after closure/expiration

Merged into one financial agreement record 
series.

Agreement Debt Agreement Promissory Notes Debt related promissory notes AE+10 Y

24 CFR 85.42; Grants & co-operative agreements, 3 years after 
submission of last expenditure report; OMB Cir. A-110, (C)(53); 3 
years after submission of final expenditure report or final 
disposition; State of California Guidelines; Closure plus 3 years 
for loans



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 3 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

Merged Banking Agreements record series 
into one series.

Agreement Financial Financial Agreements
Grants and financial agreements related to regular banking activities, 
merchant accounts; legal service requests, pertinent correspondence, 
attestations, etc.

AE+10 AE+10 Y

Banking: 18 CFR 125.3(3); 4 years after expiration of Agreement 
or until conclusion of any disputes pertaining to such 
Agreements; Grants & co-operative agreements, 3 years after 
submission of last expenditure report; OMB Cir. A-110, (C)(53); 3 
years after submission of final expenditure report or final 
disposition; State of California Guidelines; Closure plus 3 years 
for loans.

Merged into one long term agreement record 
series. Agreement

Interconnection 
Agreements Interconnection Agreements Interconnection Agreements with Balancing Authorities, such as PG&E AE+15 Y

18 CFR 125.3(3); 4 years after expiration of Agreement or until 
conclusion of any disputes pertaining to such Agreements; 
CCP337; CCP 343; Statues of limitations; 4 year limitation; 
Original in Safe Deposit. 

new listing Agreement Labor Agreements General Manager Agreement
Includes executed General Manager Agreements, pertinent 
correspondence, legal service requests, attestations, etc. PERM Y

GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines, non-
public-safety employees' human resources documents, 3 years 
after termination.

Updated description to include more related 
documents.

Agreement Labor Agreements Negotiations & original Memorandums of 
Understanding

Negotiations with labor groups and employees, and original Memoranda 
of Understanding. Includes executed Agreements, notes, bargaining 
meeting minutes, notebooks, pertinent correspondence, legal service 
requests, attestations, etc.
Negotiations with labor groups and employees, and original Memoranda 
of Understanding. Includes notes, notebooks, correspondence, and 
Agreements

PERM PERM Y 29 USC 211c; Maintain, indefinite; 29 USC 203(m); Definitions; 
29 USC 207(g); State of California Guidelines; Permanent

Merged into one short term agreement record 
series.

Agreement Lease Agreements Lease Agreements Leases, including operating or capital leases for equipment or property AE+5 Y CCP 337.2; Statutes of limitations; 4 years after breach, 
abandonment or termination of tenant possession

Updated description to include related 
documents. Agreement License Agreements Licenses/Use Agreements

Includes all documents related to the license agreement, including 
license keys, legal service requests, pertinent correspondence, etc.
Includes all documents related to the license agreement, including 
license keys

LOS+5 LOS+5 Y
CCP 337.2; Statues of limitations; 4 year standard limitation; 
RSA Suggestion; Life of software/system plus 5 years

Merged all AE+15 agreements into one 
record series. Agreement Long Term

Long Term Agreements (greater than 5 
years)

NCPA agency agreements in effect for more than 5 years, including 
RMR, MSSA, WAPA 2948A, Balancing Authority Agreements; 
Interconnection Agreements with Balancing Authorities, such as PG&E; 
Member Agreements such as governance, services, projects, programs 
such as Third Phase, WAPA Assignment, JPA, SMSA, Facilities, 
Pooling, etc.; Co-Tenancy Agreements, such as those with PG&E for 
transmission; related documents including signed and executed 
agreements, contract authorization forms, pertinent correspondence, 
attestations; and other completed and signed required documents 
related to long term agreements.

AE+15 AE+15 Y

18 CFR 125.3(3); 4 years after expiration of Agreement or until 
conclusion of any disputes pertaining to such Agreements; CCP 
337; CCP 343; Statutes of limitations; 4 year limitation; Original 
in Safe Deposit

Merged into one long term agreement record 
series. Agreement Member Agreements Member Agreements

Includes governance, services, projects, programs; i.e., Third Phase, 
WAPA Assignment, JPA, SMSA, Facilities, Pooling, etc. AE+15 Y

18 CFR 125.3(3); 4 years after expiration of Agreement or until 
conclusion of any disputes pertaining to such Agreements; 
CCP337; CCP 343; Statues of limitations; 4 year limitation; 
Original in Safe Deposit. 



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 4 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

New listing. Agreement Non Disclosure General Non Disclosure Agreements Non Disclosure Agreements (NDAs) with Entities NCPA is conducting 
business.

[follow 
retention with 
the associated 
item]

Y

New listing. Agreement Non Disclosure Non Disclosure Agreements with Members
Non Disclosure Agreements  (NDAs) with NCPA Members and Project 
Participants related to market data made available by NCPA. T+2 Y

The NDA is not required by law.  It is a condition that NCPA 
places on those members that wish access to the data portal.  

Merged all AE+5 agreements and 
counterparty guaranty into one record series.

Agreement Short Term Short Term Agreements (5 years or less)

NCPA agency agreements in effect for 5 years or less, including 
commodity purchases and guarantees for services and products, DCS1; 
Leases, including operating or capital leases for equipment or property; 
Vendor agreements associated with maintenance & support, 
professional services, services & products, financial services; Employee 
medical, dental, vision, disability contracts or other administrative 
contracts; Related documents including signed and executed 
agreements, contractor safety forms, contract authorization forms, 
pertinent correspondence, insurance certificates, attestations; RFP, 
winning vendor proposal, bid summary for public works; and other 
completed and signed required documents related to short term 
agreements.

AE+5 AE+5 Y

General: CCP 337; CCP 343; Statues of limitations; 4 year 
limitation; maintenance & support: RSA suggestion; Life of 
System plus 5 years; 
Professional Services: GC 34090; 2 year minimum requirement; 
State of California Guidelines; Current year plus 4 years; 
Service/Product: 18 CFR 125.3(3); 4 years after expiration of 
agreement or until conclusion of any disputes pertaining to such 
agreements; Original in Safe Deposit.
Guaranty: 2 years after the guaranty expires.
CCP 337.2; Statutes of limitations; 4 years after breach, 
abandonment or termination of tenant possession

Updated description to include more related 
documents.

Agreement Utility Plant 
Agreements

Agreements Relating to construction, 
acquisition or sale of Utility Plant

Executed Agreements and related documents associated with the 
construction, acquisition or sale of a utility plant; including licenses to 
construct, operate, and maintain a utility plant; pertinent 
correspondence, legal service requests, contractor safety forms, 
contract authorization form, attestations, etc.
Agreements and related documents associated with the construction, 
acquisition or sale of a utility plant

LOP+6 LOP+6 Y 18 CFR § 125.3(22) 

Merged into one short term agreement record 
series. Agreement Vendor Agreements

Agency General Agreements (Vendor 
Agreements)

Includes contractor safety orientation forms, Contractor Contract Form 
(CCF) and other completed and signed required documents related to 
vendor agreements

AE+5 Y CCP 337; CCP 343; Statues of limitations; 4 year limitation

Merged into one short term agreement record 
series.

Agreement Vendor Agreements Maintenance & Support Agreements Agreements and related documents associated with maintenance and 
support vendor agreements

AE+5 Y CCP 337; CCP 343; Statues of limitations; 4 year limitation; RSA 
suggestion; Life of System plus 5 years

Merged into one short term agreement record 
series. Agreement Vendor Agreements Professional Services Agreements

Agreements and related documents associated with professional 
services vendor agreements AE+5 Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum requirement; CCP 337; CCP 343; 
Statues of limitations; 4 year limitation; State of California 
Guidelines; Current year plus 4 years

Merged into one short term agreement record 
series. Agreement Vendor Agreements

Service and Product Agreements (Vendor 
Agreements)

Agreements and related documents associated with management, 
accounting, financial services vendor agreements AE+5 Y

18 CFR 125.3(3); 4 years after expiration of Agreement or until 
conclusion of any disputes pertaining to such Agreements; CCP 
337; CCP 343; Statutes of limitations; 4 year limitation; Original 
in Safe Deposit. 

New listing to separate bond documents. Bonds Bonds

Final bond documentation (original on CD) such as pricing book, official 
statement, agreement, authorization letters, signature cards, resolutions; 
letters of credit, other liquidity products related to variable rate debt 
issuances, debt related promissory notes; Statements of deposits and 
withdrawals related to bonds; includes documentation evidencing the 
expenditure of bond proceeds. Documentation evidencing the use of the 
Project by public and private sources (i.e., copies of management 
contracts, research agreements, leases; any long term power sales to 
private entities, etc.); documents like vouchers, demonstrating transfer of 
revenues to debt service fund. Maintain until after expiration of the 
bonds; legal service requests, pertinent correspondence, attestations, 
etc. Maintain until after expiration of the bonds.

AE+10 Y/N

Bond/Revenue: GC34090; 2 year minimum; CCP 337.5 Statute 
of limitations; State of California Guidelines; 10 years after 
closure;
Letters of Credit/Liquidity Facilities: GC 34090; 2 years minimum; 
GC 43900-43903; Destruction guidelines for bonds; CCP 336a; 
Statutes of limitations, 6 years after expiration; FC 30210; State 
of California Guidelines; Maintain 10 years after 
closure/expiration; Promissory Notes: 24 CFR 85.42;
Investments: GC 53607; 2 year minimum; CCP 337; Statutes of 
limitations, 4 years for action; GC 53607; Maintain State of 
California Guidelines; Permanent 
Bonds: 18 CFR § 125.3(35)(c) until fund is dissolved; State of 
California guidelines AC+10.



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 5 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

new listing Chemistry
Chemistry analysis and laboratory 
equipment documentation

Chemistry analysis and laboratory equipment documentation; including 
reports generated from chemistry analysis. LOP+2 Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum.

new listing Chemistry ELAP Documents
Documentation associated with compliance with the Environmental 
Laboratory Accredidation Program. AA+7 Y

GC 34090; 2 years minimum; 22 CCR 64815, maintain quality 
assurance program records for 3 years minimum.

Merged with a general "Related 
Correspondence" record series that ties 
correspondence to the item it's associated 
with, and the subsequent retention period 
and record type.

Correspondence Agreement 
Correspondence

Any correspondence regarding Agreements

Correspondence essential for clarifying or explaining provisions of 
Agreements; includes requests for discounts, insurance certificates, 
Legal Services Requests, Contractor Contract Forms, and other 
supporting documentation

[follow 
retention with 
the associated 
Agreement]

Y 18 CFR 125.3(3)(c)-(d);  years after expiration of Agreement

Merged with "Official Commission & 
Executive Committee Meeting Documents" 
record series.

Correspondence
Confidential - 
Commission Confidential Memos to the Commission Commission only memos PERM Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California Guidelines; 
Current year plus 2; Administrative Decision: permanent

Updated legal citation & description. Correspondence Confidential - Legal Legal Opinions

Legal opinions from general counsel or special counsel. This 
correspondence can go into SharePoint as long as there are limited 
permissions set where it is stored. This correspondence does not go in 
SharePoint because that would break confidentiality.

PERM PERM Y/N

GC 34090; 2 year.  6254; Disclosure of records.  State of 
California Guidelines, Legal opinions, 2 years after being 
superseded.
GC 34090; 2 year  6254; Disclosure of records

Updated legal citation & description. Correspondence Confidential - Legal Legal Opinions - Bond Counsel

Legal opinions from bond counsel. This correspondence can go into 
SharePoint as long as there are limited permissions set where it is 
stored. This correspondence does not go in SharePoint because that 
would break confidentiality.

LOP+15 LOP+15 Y/N

GC 34090; 2 year  6254; Disclosure of records.  State of 
California Guidelines, Legal opinions, 2 years after being 
superseded.
GC 34090; 2 year  6254; Disclosure of records

Merged with a general "Related 
Correspondence" record series that ties 
correspondence to the item it's associated 
with, and the subsequent retention period 
and record type.

Correspondence Financial 
Correspondence

Declaration of Excess Correspondence Correspondence related to declaration of excess (disposal of surplus 
supply) process

AA+6 Y

Merged with a general "Related 
Correspondence" record series that ties 
correspondence to the item it's associated 
with, and the subsequent retention period 
and record type.

Correspondence Financial 
Correspondence

GOR Correspondence Includes letters of direction, correspondence regarding GOR deposits AA+6 Y/N

Updated short description. Correspondence
General 
Correspondence

External & Internal General 
Correspondence

General correspondence including emails, letters, memos; those with 
Union Representatives/Organizations, media, etc.; does not include 
correspondence associated with a specific program or item tied to 
another record series as listed in the Related Correspondence record 
series.
General correspondence (letters, memos, etc.); does not include 
correspondence associated with a specific program tied to another 
record series

CY+4 CY+4 Y/N
GC 34090; 2 year minimum; Administrative Record, State of 
California Guidelines

Updated short description. Correspondence
General 
Correspondence General E-mail

This type of correspondence stays in Outlook, and refers to e-mails that 
are considered transmittal in nature without any substance in the body of 
the email or are not made or retained for the purpose of preserving their 
informational content for future reference. This does not include 
correspondence associated with another specific record series.
This type of correspondence stays in Outlook. Does not include 
correspondence associated with another specific record series

TEMP TEMP N
Administrative decision: temporary retention for storage capacity 
and Public Records Act reasons



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 6 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

Merged with the "General Correspondence" 
record series.

Correspondence General 
Correspondence

Media Correspondence CY+4 Y GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California Guidelines; 
Current year plus 2

Merged with the "General Correspondence" 
record series.

Correspondence General 
Correspondence

Union Representatives/Organizations 
Correspondence

CY+4 Y GC 34090; 2 year minimum

Merged with a general "Related 
Correspondence" record series that ties 
correspondence to the item it's associated 
with, and the subsequent retention period 
and record type.

Correspondence Land/Property 
Correspondence

Any correspondence related to purchase of 
land/property

Correspondence related to purchase of property PERM Y

Merged with a general "Related 
Correspondence" record series that ties 
correspondence to the item it's associated 
with, and the subsequent retention period 
and record type.

Correspondence Legislative 
Correspondence

State & Federal Legislation Bill 
Correspondence

Includes bill analysis correspondence and other supporting documents CY+7 Y

Merged with a general "Related 
Correspondence" record series that ties 
correspondence to the item it's associated 
with, and the subsequent retention period 
and record type.

Correspondence
Procurement 
Correspondence

Formal Bids/RFPs/RFQs/RFIs 
Correspondence Correspondence essential to the procurement process AA+5 Y

Merged all correspondence related to specific 
item called out in another record series into 
one record series; updated short description 
and created new record series.

Correspondence Related Correspondence

Correspondence essential for clarifying or explaining provisions of 
agreements, audits, NERC alerts, ELAP, litigation claims, insurance 
claims, GOR, grants, chemistry analysis, public records requests, 
property purchases, State & Federal legislation bills, permits, 
procurement, plant operations, regulatory and regulatory filings, MOU 
negotiations, etc. "Essential correspondence" is any correspondence 
with a sentence or more related to the subject as listed above, even if 
there is a clause in an agreement that states all negotiations prior to 
execution of the agreement are null and void.

[follow 
retention with 
the associated 
item]

[follow 
retention with 
the associated 
item]

Y [see the associated item's record series]

Added short description and legal citation. Counterparty Approved Counterparty list Approved Counterparty list SUP+2 SUP+2 Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum.

Added legal citation. Counterparty Counterparty Evaluations
Includes cash flow analysis, CRAM, Counterparty Authorization Form, 
Counterparty evaluation summary, counterparty financial statements CY+2 CY+2 Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum.

Increased retention from AE+2 to AE+5; 
merged with Short Term Agreements.

Counterparty Counterparty Guarantees 2 years after the guarantee expires AE+2 Y

Removed line; this database is a tool to pass 
through the data to NCPA database. Database Record ACES Database

Includes data associated with Resource outages (SLIC availability), Real 
Time Scheduling, Unit Energy Allocation output data, ISO Bids/Awards 
(from TABS), ISO Dispatches/Instructions (from NADS), Member 
Preferred Schedules (from Scheduling Web Services [Roseville & Santa 
Clara) and Web Prescheduler [TID]), Prescheduling energy & AS 
Schedules (from Prescheduler)
Note: all of this data is replicated to the NCPA Database as well; except 
for history

CY+10 CY+10 N GC 34090; 2 years minimum.

Merged into one Plant/Project Database 
record series.

Database Record Aquarius Database Database maintained for NCPA business activities LOP+2 N

New listing; pulled SAMC data out of 
associated database record series. Database Record CAISO Settlements Raw Data

Raw data associated with ISO invoices and  settlement statements; zip 
files sent from CAISO CY+10 N GC 34090; 2 years minimum.



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 7 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

Merged into one Plant/Project Database 
record series. Database Record CMMS Database Computerized database with maintenance records for plant assets LOP+2 N

Updated record series from System Backup - 
Annually to Database Record Backup; 
merged 4 related record series into one and 
updated short description.
2014: new listing.

Database Record Database Record Backup Backup of database records performed daily, weekly, monthly, and/or 
annually.

[follow Disaster 
Recovery & 
Business 
Continuity 
Policy 337]

[follow 
Disaster 
Recovery & 
Business 
Continuity 
Policy 337]

N GC 34090.7; duplicates and copies may be destroyed within the 
2 year minimum period.

Added legal citation; updated retention period 
and short description. Database Record Help Desk Data Records in customer management/job tracking system. (Spiceworks) CY+10 CY+3 N GC 34090; 2 years minimum.

Pulled out of NCPA Database record series 
and increased retention period. Database Record Meter & Water Data (NCPA Database)

Data associated with SCADA, Trimark, and SQMD (meter data); Water 
accounting data (water schedules and allocated hydro meter data). PERM N GC 34090; 2 years minimum.

Added legal citation; pulled meter and water 
data out of this record series into its own 
meter & water data record series; updated 
short description.

Database Record NCPA Database

In addition to data replicated from the ACES database (data associated 
with Resource outages (SLIC availability), Real Time Scheduling, Unit 
Energy Allocation output data, ISO Bids/Awards (from TABS), ISO 
Dispatches/Instructions (from NADS), Member Preferred Schedules 
(from Scheduling Web Services [Roseville & Santa Clara) and Web 
Prescheduler [TID]), includes data associated with SCADA, Trimark, and 
SQMD (meter data), ISO Settlements output data (estimates, 
allocations), All Resources Bill raw data, Recorder ID data sent to ISO, 
Water accounting, Imbalance Energy process output data, historical 
Market Prices (ICE), dispatch logs (NCPA Logger), ISO Market 
information (from CMRI), BPA line ratings, JP Morgan Gas settlements, 
Greenhouse Gas settlements, MARS data, Trade Manager, Deals, 
Prescheduling bids & ETC schedules (from Prescheduler, Web SAS 
logs, Timesheet data.
Note: ACES and SAMC databases are temporary pass-through 
locations; data kept in NCPA database is the record. CY = Trade Date

CY+20 CY+20 N GC 34090; 2 years minimum.

Merged into one Plant/Project Database 
record series.

Database Record Pi Database Plant Information, statuses, readings, etc. from various equipment LOP+2 N

Merged 4 record series into one; these were 
new in 2014 based on legal counsel 
recommendation. Added legal citation.

Database Record Plant/Project Databases

Database records associated with NCPA Plants/Projects such as 
Aquarius (NCPA business activities at Hydro); CMMS (computerized 
database with maintenance records for Plant assets); PI (Plant 
information, status, readings, etc. from various equipment); Red Tag 
(Generation Services safety procedures).

LOP+2 LOP+2 N
GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines, 
agency-owned facilities, life of plant plus 2 years.

New Listing. Database Record Power Supply Data Model (Plexos) Production cost data model for power supply planning. TEMP N GC 34090; 2 years minimum.

2016: Added legal citation; updated record 
series and short description.
2014: updated retention period.

Database Record Power Supply Data Output Plexos database
Output of production cost modeling data for power supply planning; 
includes loads, resources, transactions, other power agreements. CY+10 CY+10 N GC 34090; 2 years minimum.

Merged into one Plant/Project Database 
record series.

Database Record Red Tag Database Database for Generation Services safety procedures LOP+2 N

Removed line; this database is a tool to pass 
through the data from xml to NCPA 
database.

Database Record SAMC Database Includes data associated with ISO Invoices and Settlement Statements CY+10 CY+10 N GC 34090; 2 years minimum.



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 8 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

Removed line; these are all copies of 
records. Database Record System Backup - Annually Backup database records performed annually

[follow Disaster 
Recovery & 
Business 
Continuity 
Policy 337]

N

Removed line; these are all copies of 
records. Database Record System Backup - Daily Backup database records performed daily

[follow Disaster 
Recovery & 
Business 
Continuity 
Policy 337]

N

Removed line; these are all copies of 
records. Database Record System Backup - Monthly Backup database records performed monthly

[follow Disaster 
Recovery & 
Business 
Continuity 
Policy 337]

N
GC 34090.7; duplicates and copies may be destroyed within the 
2 year minimum period.

Removed line; these are all copies of 
records. Database Record System Backup - Weekly Backup database records performed weekly

[follow Disaster 
Recovery & 
Business 
Continuity 

N
GC 34090.7; duplicates and copies may be destroyed within the 
2 year minimum period.

Added legal citation and short description. Database Record System Log Data
Events logged by Windows system components; such as those during 
normal operations. Logs include data related to informational and 
diagnostics.

CM+6M CM+6 Months Y 64 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 317 (1981).

Added legal citation and updated retention 
period.

Database Record ZEXI Database

Includes data associated with ISO OASIS market data, ISO CRR 
auction results, Platt's gas prices, Baker Hughes US Oil & Gas split 
data, CEC Energy Facilities status data, CME NYMEX Futures & 
Options data, EOX Price curve, BPA Line Ratings, Natural Gas Prices, 
PLEXOS data

CY+10 CY+20 N GC 34090; 2 years minimum.

Merged into one transaction confirmations 
record series.

Deal Confirms Investment Confirmations Trade tickets/ confirmations AE+6 Y

Merged into one transaction confirmations 
record series. Deal Confirms

Transaction Confirms, DCS1, DCS3 (3rd 
parties & Members) Confirmations related to power deals AE+6 Y

Added short description and updated 
retention period.

Deal Confirms 
Transaction 
Confirmations

Counterparties IM & Voice Recordings
Counterparty Instant Messages & voice recordings. (IMs and voice 
recordings are not stored on SharePoint). AE+6 CY+5 N

Added legal citation and short description. Default Energy Bid Negotiated Default Energy Bids (NDEB) 
Methodology

Negotiated Default Energy Bids (NDEB) Methodology SUP+2 SUP+2 Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum.

merged into one record series line of 
Enterprise Architecture Design Business Business & System Rules & Requirements

Includes glossaries, decision tables, business rules, etc. related to 
specific projects, agency business model, department business model, 
and other areas of NCPA business as it arises

SUP+4 Y

merged into one record series line of 
Enterprise Architecture

Design Business Deployment Testing Documentation Includes test cases, testing deployment plans, testing acceptance, 
checklists, etc.

SUP+4 Y

merged into one record series line of 
Enterprise Architecture Design Business Process Flows

Includes work flows, business process flows, data flows, hierarchies, 
etc. related to specific projects, agency business model, department 
business model, and other areas of NCPA business as it arises

SUP+4 Y

merged into one record series line of 
Enterprise Architecture Design Network Infrastructure & Wiring SUP+4 Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum requirement; CCP 343; SOL is 4 
years for actions to commence; State of California Guidelines; 
Current year plus 4 years



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 9 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

merged into one record series line of 
Enterprise Architecture Design Network Network Maps, Plans & Diagrams SUP+4 Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum requirement; CCP 343; SOL is 4 
years for actions to commence; State of California Guidelines; 
Current year plus 4 years

merged into one record series line of 
Enterprise Architecture Design Network Security & Data Integrity Access rights, IP addresses, etc. SUP+4 Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum requirement; CCP 343; SOL is 4 
years for actions to commence; State of California Guidelines; 
Current year plus 4 years

merged into one record series line of 
Enterprise Architecture

Design Network System Configuration Workstation/server configurations SUP+4 Y
GC 34090; 2 year minimum requirement; CCP 343; SOL is 4 
years for actions to commence; State of California Guidelines; 
Current year plus 4 years

Updated record series from "Business & 
System Rules & Requirements" and short 
description; merged all related business and 
network records into one record series.

Enterprise 
Architecture Enterprise Architecture

Documents related to NCPA enterprise architecture and specific 
projects; including glossaries, decision tables, business 
rules/requirements, process/data flows, network diagrams, 
workstation/server configurations, access rights, IP addresses, etc

SUP+4 SUP+4 Y/N
Network architecture documents: GC 34090; 2 year minimum 
requirement; CCP 343; SOL is 4 years for actions to commence; 
State of California Guidelines; Current year plus 4 years

New listing
Enterprise 
Architecture Plant Network Configurations Network configuration at Plants stored in the Siemens T3000. TEMP N

Network architecture documents: GC 34090; 2 year minimum 
requirement; CCP 343; SOL is 4 years for actions to commence; 
State of California Guidelines; Current year plus 4 years

Merged into one record series line for NERC 
Compliance & Internal Audit. Evidence Audit

Cyber Security (CIP) Audit work papers and 
other documentation CY+7 Y

Merged into one record series line for NERC 
Compliance & Internal Audit. Evidence Audit Internal Audit Work Papers

Work papers related to safety audits, departmental audits, internal & 
external; Not related to financial audits CY+7 Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum Administrative Record, State of 
California Guidelines

Merged internal, cyber security, and NERC 
compliance workpapers into one record 
series.

Evidence Audit
NERC Compliance and Internal Audit
NERC Compliance work papers and other 
documentation

NERC Compliance (including CIP): includes requested reports, steady-
state and dynamics data for modeling &amp; simulation of the 
interconnected transmission system, audits, specific-requested data 
reports, engineering records, logs, attendance lists, RBAM, RSAW, 

CY+7 CY+7 Y Internal Audits: GC 34090; 2 year minimum Administrative 
Record, State of California Guidelines

New listing Evidence Audit Safety Audits Audits per Safety Policies and Procedures. CY+2 Y GC 34090; 2 year minimum Administrative Record, State of 
California Guidelines

Merged into one record series for Accounting 
Support. Finance Bank Statements Bank Statements

Includes statements, summaries for receipts, disbursements & 
reconciliation AA+6 Y

GC 34090; 2 years minimum; FC 30210; Maintain, indeterminate 
retention; GC 43900-43903; Bond records, notification to public 
of destruction; State of California Guidelines; 2 years after audit

Merged into one record series: Investment 
Transactions.

Finance Bank Statements Funds with Administrators or Trustees Statements of deposits and withdrawals related to bonds AE+10 N Citations: 18 CFR § 125.3(35)(c) until fund is dissolved; State of 
California guidelines AC+10



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 10 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

Merged into one billing & settlements support 
record series.

Finance Billing Accounts Receivable Misc. Invoices sent to non Members; one off invoices; includes supporting 
documents

AA+6 Y State of California Guidelines; after audit plus 4 years

Updated record series name, added legal 
citation and updated retention period; merged 
billing and settlements working documents 
into this record series.

Finance Billing All Resource Bill Billing & Settlements 
Support

Administrative (including related correspondence and ARB memos), 
validation, and settlement output documents associated with the billing 
and settlements processes; including year-end settlements & output 
from members' cost allocations. (PDF version is in SharePoint), 
WREGIS documents (participant transfer requests, RECs downloads, & 
other RECs administrative documents), Greenhouse Gas documents 
(participant transfer requests, auction bidding strategies, CITSS 
downloads, & other greenhouse gas administrative documents), and 
invoices sent to non Members or one-off invoices (including supporting 
documents). The reports within the ARB remain on a network drive for 
publishing to DataPortal. The same reports are available as documents 
and raw data on the DataPortal. Raw data is in the NCPA Database.

AA+6 AA+10 Y/N Invoices: State of California Guidelines; after audit plus 4 years

Merged into one billing & settlements support 
record series.

Finance Billing Billing and Settlements Validation Working 
Documents

Administrative, validation, and settlement output documents associated 
with the billing and settlements processes; including year-end 
settlements & output from members' cost allocations. (PDF version is in 
SharePoint), WREGIS documents (participant transfer requests, RECs 
downloads, & other RECs administrative documents), Greenhouse Gas 
documents (participant transfer requests, auction bidding strategies, 
CITSS downloads, & other greenhouse gas administrative documents), 
and invoices sent to non Members or one-off invoices (including 
supporting documents).

AA+6 AA+6 Y Invoices: State of California Guidelines; after audit plus 4 years

Merged into one billing & settlements support 
record series. Finance Billing Greenhouse Gas administrative documents

Includes participant transfer requests, auction bidding strategies, CITSS 
downloads, and other greenhouse gas administrative documents AA+6 Y

Merged into one billing & settlements support 
record series.

Finance Billing Year-end billing Settlement Year-end settlements and output from Members Cost Allocations. The 
PDF version is in SharePoint.

AA+6 Y

Finance Budget Annual/Final Budget Adopted Budget PERM PERM Y
GC 34090; 2 years minimum; GC 40802; State of California 
Guidelines; Final copy of approved budget is permanent. 
Working copies can be destroyed after use.

Merged budget workpapers and cost 
allocations into one record series; updated 
retention period.

Finance Budget Budget & Cost Allocation Workpapers

Includes proposed budgets and all work papers leading up to final 
annual budget; general files of member cost allocations, including 
schedules suspended or superseded; model, methodology, business 
rules for the cost allocations.

AA+6 AA+10 Y

Budget Workpapers: GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of 
California Guidelines; Current year plus 2 years; Administrative 
Decision 6 years after audit for tracking purposes.
Cost Allocations: 18 CFR § 125.3(30); 6 years after superseded 
or no longer used.

Merged into one record series: budget & cost 
allocation workpapers. Finance Budget Budget & Revenue Work papers

Includes proposed budgets and all work papers leading up to final 
annual budget AA+6 Y

GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines; 
Current year plus 2 years; Administrative Decision: 6 years after 
audit for tracking purposes.



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 11 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

Merged into one record series: budget & cost 
allocation workpapers. Finance Budget

Rate Schedules - Members Cost 
Allocations (methodology)

General files of member cost allocations, including schedules 
suspended or superseded; model, methodology, business rules for the 
cost allocations

AA+6 Y 18 CFR § 125.3(30); 6 years after superseded or no longer used.

Merged several records together into one 
record series: declaration of excess, GOR, 
cancelled checks, check registers, purchase 
orders, inventory, plant account 
reclassification, bank statements, timesheets, 
voucher packet.

Finance Financial Records Accounting Support Documentation

Includes declaration of excess form for assets more than $5,000, 
authorization for sales, bid invitation, bid register, contribution slip, 
donation receipt, and other supporting documentation; GOR letters of 
direction, correspondence regarding GOR deposits, and other 
documents related to GOR; cancelled checks; check registers, A/P 
listing reports, month-end reports; original purchase orders; In CMMS; 
ledger sheets of materials and supplies received, issued, and on hand; 
records showing distribution of materials and supplies, including IT 
materials/supplies; records pertaining to reclassification of plant 
accounts; bank statements, summaries for receipts, disbursements; 
reconciliation; signed employee timecards and/or timesheets, travel 
requests (including any supporting documents), maintained audit 
reports; voucher registers when used as source document; paid and 
canceled vouchers; original bills and invoices paid by vouchers; paid 
checks and receipts for payments of vouchers; authorization for payment 
of specific vouchers; invoices paid may go in SharePoint or in Great 
Plains. Voucher will go in Great Plains.

AA+6 AA+10 Y/N

Check Register: GC 34090.7; Warrant registers are 2 years after 
audit; copies of information contained in another form/location; 
GC 34090; 2 year minimum;
Cancelled Checks: GC 34090; 2 year minimum; CCP 337; 
Statute of limitations; State of California Guidelines; 5 years after 
audit;
Purchase Order: GC 34090; 2 year minimum; CCP 337; Statute 
of limitations; State of California Guidelines; 4 years after audit;
Bank statements: GC 34090; 2 years minimum; FC 30210; 
Maintain, indeterminate retention; GC 43900-43903; Bond 
records, notification to public of destruction; State of California 
Guidelines; 2 years after audit;
Timesheets: GC 34090; 2 year minimum; 29 CFR 516.2; 29 CFR 
516.6; maintain 2 years; § 19530; 3 years after tax return due; LC 
1174; 2 years after pay period; 26 CFR 31.6001-1; 4 years after 
tax return due; State of California Guidelines; 6 years after audit;
Declaration of Excess: 18 CFR § 125.3(28); 3 years;
Inventory, Plant Records: 18 CFR § 125.3(26); 6 years after 
creation;
Voucher packet: 18 CFR § 125.3(10)-(11); 5 years.

Merged annual audit worksheets, documents 
supporting journal entries, and asset 
retirement work into one record series.

Finance Financial Records Annual Audit Workpapers & Journal Entry 
Support

Includes general financial audit workpapers and asset retirement work 
such as summary sheets, distribution sheets, reports, statements, and 
papers directly supporting debits and credits to utility plant accounts not 
covered by construction or retirement work; workbooks with links/macros 
will remain on the network drives while others will be in SharePoint; 
journal entries, analyses, summarization, distributions, and 
computations; does not include those for Hydro Plant Accounts. PDFs 
are in SharePoint; data in Great Plains.

AA+10 AA+10 Y/N

Annual Audit: GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California 
Guidelines; 7 years after audit; Administrative Decision 10 years 
after audit;
Journal entry support: 18 CFR § 125.3(8)(b)(2); 6 years for non-
plant accounts;
Asset Retirement Work: 18 CFR § 125.3(19); 5 years.

Merged into one record series for Audit & 
Journal Entry Support. Finance Financial Records Annual Audit Worksheets

General financial audit work papers; workbooks with links/macros will 
remain on the network drives; while others will be in SharePoint AA+10 Y/N

GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines; 7 
years after audit; Administrative Decision: 10 years after audit

Merged into one record series for Accounting 
Support.

Finance Financial Records Cancelled Checks AA+6 N GC 34090; 2 year minimum; CCP 337; Statute of limitations; 
State of California Guidelines; 5 years after audit

Merged into one record series for Accounting 
Support. Finance Financial Records Check Register Includes A/P Listing Reports, and Month End Reports AA+6 N

GC 34090.7; Warrant registers are 2 years after audit; copies of 
information contained in another form/location; GC 34090; 2 year 
minimum

Merged into one record series for Audit & 
Journal Entry Support. Finance Financial Records Documents supporting journal entries

Includes journal entries, analyses, summarization, distributions, and 
computations; does not include those for Hydro Plant Accounts. PDFs 
are in SharePoint; data in Great Plains.

AA+10 Y/N 18 CFR § 125.3(8)(b)(2); 6 years for non-plant accounts

Finance Financial Records General and Subsidiary Ledgers 
General Ledger and other subsidiary ledger data maintained in the 
financial system PERM PERM N

GC 34090; 2 year minimum  CCP 337; Statutes of limitations, 4 
years for action  State of California Guidelines; Permanent  18 
CFR § 125.3(6); 10 years

Merged into one record series for Accounting 
Support.

Finance Financial Records GOR working documents Includes letters of direction, correspondence regarding GOR deposits, 
and other documents related to GOR

AA+6 Y/N

Merged into one record series for Accounting 
Support.

Finance Financial Records Purchase Orders Original purchase orders; n/a for SharePoint AA+6 N GC 34090; 2 year minimum; CCP 337; Statute of limitations; 
State of California Guidelines; 4 years after audit

Merged into one record series for Accounting 
Support.

Finance Financial Records Records of Sales of Scrap and Materials 
and Supplies

Authorization for sales; contribution slip; other supporting 
documentation; declaration of excess

AA+6 Y 18 CFR § 125.3(28); 3 years



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 12 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

Finance Grants Miscellaneous Grants
Actual grant application, grant filings, reimbursement requests, other 
related documents AC+6 AC+6 Y

24 CFR 85.42; Grants & co-operative agreements, 3 years after 
submission of last expenditure report; OMB Cir. A-110, (C)(53); 3 
years after submission of final expenditure report or final 
disposition; 29 CFR 97.42; grants covered by a consolidated 
action plan must be kept for 5 years; State of California 
Guidelines; 5 years after grant closure; State recommends 
referring to grant application close-out procedures, if any.

Merged into one record series for Accounting 
Support. Finance Inventory

Material Ledgers; Materials and Supply 
Records

In CMMS; ledger sheets of materials and supplies received, issued, and 
on hand; records showing distribution of materials and supplies, 
including IT materials/supplies

AA+6 N 18 CFR § 125.3(26); 6 years after creation

Merged into one record series: Investment 
Transactions. Finance

Investment 
Statements Investment Transactions

Listing of all investments leading up to the creation of the Treasurer's 
Report AE+10 Y

GC 53607; 2 year minimum; CCP 337; Statutes of limitations, 4 
years for action; GC 53607; Maintain State of California 
Guidelines; Permanent. Meyers Nave recommendation; after 
expiration plus 10

Finance Payroll Employee Payroll Files Payroll pay sheets, FLSA worksheets; hourly and salary employees T+3 T+3 N

GC 34090; 2 years minimum; GC 12946; 2 years after 
termination; 29 CFR 516.5-6; Maintain at least 2 or 3 years, 
depending upon record; 29 CFR 1627.3; Maintain 3 years; State 
of California Guidelines; 3 years after employee termination or 
separation

New listing; merged Hydro asset and general 
asset construction & retirement into one 
record series.

Finance Plant Records Asset Construction & Retirement Work, and 
Hydro Asset Support

Construction Work in Progress, Ledgers, Work Orders, journal entries, 
etc., including work orders for utility plant additions; Documents 
supporting journal entries charged to Hydro Plant Asset Accounts, 
including analyses, summarization, distributions, and computations; 
Retirement Work in Progress, ledgers, etc. These are in CMMS; work 
order sheets to which are posted removal costs, materials recovered and 
credits to utility plant accounts.

LOP+6 LOP+6 Y/N

Construction-related: 18 CFR § 125.3(17)(a-b); 5 years after 
plant is retired, or 5 years after clearance to plant account only if 
continuing plant inventory records are maintained;
Hydro Plant Assets: 18 CFR § 125.3(8)(b)(1); 25 years for plant 
accounts; see also 18 CFR § 125.2(g); records related to hydro 
facilities must be retained until ERC determines the actual 
legitimate original cost of facilities;
Retirement-related: 18 CFR § 125.3(18); 5 years after plant 
retirement.

Merged into one Asset Construction & 
Retirement Work, and Hydro Asset Support 
record series.

Finance Plant Records
Construction Work in Progress, Ledgers, 
Work Orders, journal entries, Etc.

Construction work in progress ledgers; work orders for utility plant 
additions LOP+6 LOP+6 N

18 CFR § 125.3(17)(a-b); 5 years after plant is retired, or 5 years 
after clearance to plant account only if  continuing plant inventory 
records are maintained

Merged into one Asset Construction & 
Retirement Work, and Hydro Asset Support 
record series.

Finance Plant Records
Documents supporting journal entries 
charged to Hydro Plant Asset Accounts Includes analyses, summarization, distributions, and computations LOP+6 LOP+6 Y/N

18 CFR § 125.3(8)(b)(1); 25 years for plant accounts; see also 18 
CFR § 125.2(g); records related to hydro facilities must be 
retained until ERC determines the actual legitimate original cost 
of facilities.

Merged into one Plant Ledgers and 
Depreciation Records record series. Finance Plant Records Plant Ledgers

Ledgers of utility plant accounts including land and other detailed 
ledgers showing cost of utility plant by classes; continuing plant 
inventory ledger or book showing description, location, quantities, cost, 
etc., of physical units of utility plant, asset list, depreciation schedule

CY+25 CY+25 N 18 CFR § 125.3(16); 25 years

New listing; merged plant ledgers and 
depreciation records into one record series. Finance Plant Records Plant Ledgers and Depreciation Records

Ledgers of utility plant accounts including land and other detailed 
ledgers showing cost of utility plant by classes; continuing plant 
inventory ledger or book showing description, location, quantities, cost, 
etc., of physical units of utility plant, asset list, depreciation schedule; 
Includes supporting computation of expense, records of analysis sheets, 
and records reflecting the service life of the property and percentage of 
salvage.

CY+25 CY+25 Y/N
Plant Ledgers: 18 CFR § 125.3(16); 25 years;
Depreciation: 18 CFR § 125.3(24); 25 years



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 13 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

Merged into one Plant Ledgers and 
Depreciation Records record series. Finance Plant Records

Records of Provisions for Depreciation and 
Depletion of Plant

Includes supporting computation of expense, records of analysis sheets, 
and records reflecting the service life of the property and percentage of 
salvage

CY+25 CY+25 Y 18 CFR § 125.3(24); 25 years

Merged into one record series for Accounting 
Support. 

Finance Plant Records Records Pertaining to Reclassification of 
Plant Accounts

Includes supporting papers showing the basis for reclassifications AA+6 Y 18 CFR § 125.3(23)  6 years

Merged into one Asset Construction & 
Retirement Work, and Hydro Asset Support 
record series.

Finance Plant Records Retirement Work in Progress, ledgers, etc.
In CMMS; work order sheets to which are posted removal costs, 
materials recovered and credits to utility plant accounts LOP+6 LOP+6 Y 18 CFR § 125.3(18); 5 years after plant retirement

Merged into annual audit worksheets & 
journal entry support record series Finance Plant Records Summary Sheets of Asset Retirement Work

Summary sheets, distribution sheets, reports, statements, and papers 
directly supporting debits and credits to utility plant accounts not covered 
by construction or retirement work

AA+6 AA+10 Y 18 CFR § 125.3(19); 5 years

Merged with Financial Agreement record type Finance Signature Cards Signature Cards AE+10 Y

New listing Finance Statements Investment Transactions - Operations
Listing of all investments leading up to the creation of the Treasurer's 
Report; Statements of deposits and withdrawals related to operations. AC+10 Y

Investments: GC 53607; 2 year minimum; CCP 337; Statutes of 
limitations, 4 years for action; GC 53607; Maintain State of 
California Guidelines; Permanent

Updated minor category from "Financial 
Statements". Finance

Statements Financial 
Statements Annual Financial Statements Includes financial statements used for annual financial audit report PERM PERM Y

GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines; 
Permanent

Merged into one record series for Accounting 
Support.

Finance Timesheet Time Cards Signed employee time cards and/or timesheets; maintained audit reports AA+6 Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum; 29 CFR 516.2; 29 CFR 516.6; 
maintain 2 years; R&T 19530; 3 years after tax return due; LC 
1174; 2 years after pay period; 26 CFR 31.6001-1; 4 years after 
tax return due; State of California Guidelines; 6 years after audit

Merged into one record series for Accounting 
Support.

Finance Voucher Packet Vouchers & Invoices

Voucher registers when used as source document; paid and canceled 
vouchers; original bills and invoices paid by vouchers; paid checks and 
receipts for payments of vouchers; authorization for payment of specific 
vouchers; invoices paid may go in SharePoint or in Great Plains. 
Voucher will go in Great Plains.

AA+6 N 18 CFR § 125.3(10)-(11); 5 years

Updated Retention. Finance Work Orders Work Orders

In CMMS and/or Great Plains; work order sheets with detailed entries for 
labor and materials and other charges pertaining to utility operations; 
summaries of expenditures on maintenance and job orders and 
clearances

LOP+2 AA+10 N 18 CFR § 125.3(15); 5 years

Merged into one State & Federal 
Employment Verfication record series.

HR Background Checks Department of Justice Fingerprinting & 
Background Checks

T+3 T+5 N GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California Guidelines; 3 
years after termination

Updated description and record series title. HR Benefit Plan
Employee Benefit Plans
Public Employees Retirement System - 
CalPERS

CalPERS, Retiree Medical, Deferred Compensation 457/401A benefit 
plan contracts; includes related documents such as correspondence, 
LSRs, etc; does not include Employee Medical, Dental, Vision, Disability 
contracts or other administrative contracts (see Vendor Agreements).
Plan documents; includes PERS amendments

PERM PERM Y
GC 34090; 2 year minimum; GC 12946; 2 years after submission 
or creation; 29 CFR 1627.3(b)(2); full period of plan or system 
plus 1 year; State of California guidelines; Permanent

Merged into one record series for benefit 
information. HR Benefits

Deferred Compensation Program 
Administration

Applications, brochures and general plan information; does not include 
denied enrollment or claims. CY+2 Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum; GC 12946; 2 years after submission 
or creation; 29 CFR 1627.3(b)(2); full period of plan or system 
plus 1 year; State of California guidelines; Permanent



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 14 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

Merged all benefit information into one record 
series; updated retention period and legal 
citation.

HR Benefits Employee Benefit Information

EAP, AFLAC, Life Insurance, etc.; non-medical and/or non-insurance 
related employee services, supplemental insurance, etc.; applications, 
brochures and general plan information for deferred compensation, 
health benefits (medical, dental, vision), long term disability and life 
insurance, PERS, state disability, workers compensation; does not 
include records relating to specific employees, reports of claims and/or 
individual events or denied enrollment; or contracts.

CY+2 SUP+2 Y

Health, Long Term Disability: GC 34090; 2 year minimum; GC 
12946; 2 years after submission or creation; 29 CFR 
1627.3(b)(2); full period of plan or system plus 1 year; State of 
California guidelines; Permanent;
PERS: GC 34090; 2 year minimum;
State Disability: Administrative documents from the State. Keep 
while current;
Workers Comp: GC 34090; 2 year minimum.
Benefit Plan Information: State of California Guidelines; 2 years 
after being superseded.

Updated Retention and added description. HR Benefits Employee Handbook Employee reference guide to benefits and personnel matters. CY+2 SUP+2 Y
GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California Guidelines; 2 
years after superseded

Merged into one record series for benefit 
information. HR Benefits Health Benefits - Medical/Dental/Vision General plan information; does not include denied enrollment or claims. CY+2 Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum; GC 12946; 2 years after submission 
or creation; 29 CFR 1627.3(b)(2); full period of plan or system 
plus 1 year; State of California guidelines; Permanent

Merged into one record series for benefit 
information. HR Benefits Long Term Disability & Life Insurance General plan information CY+2 Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum; GC 12946; 2 years after submission 
or creation; 29 CFR 1627.3(b)(2); full period of plan or system 
plus 1 year; State of California guidelines; Permanent

Merged into one record series for benefit 
information. HR Benefits Other Employee Services/Benefits

EAP, AFLAC, Life Insurance, etc.; non-medical and/or non-insurance 
related employee services, supplemental insurance, etc. CY+2 Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum; GC 12946; 2 years after submission 
or creation; 29 CFR 1627.3(b)(2); full period of plan or system 
plus 1 year; State of California guidelines; Permanent

Merged into one record series for benefit 
information.

HR Benefits PERS Information General plan information CY+2 Y GC 34090; 2 year minimum

Merged into one record series for benefit 
information.

HR Benefits State Disability Insurance Administrative documents from State; blank disability claim forms CY+2 Y Administrative documents from the State. Keep while current.

Merged into one record series for benefit 
information.

HR Benefits Workers Compensation Administration Administrative documents used for workers compensation; does not 
include reports of claims and/or individual events

CY+2 Y GC 34090; 2 year minimum

Merged records into one record series; 
updated minor category from "Salary" and 
updated retention.

HR Compensation Compensation & Reclassification Studies General pay and classification plan; does not include records for specific 
employees; compensation study; reclassification study.

CY+5 CY+7 N

GC 34090; 2 year minimum; GC 12946; 2 years after 
completion/position filled; 29 CFR  516.6(2);  2 years for wage 
rate and similar tables; 29 CFR 1602.14; 1 year after 
action/change; State of California Guidelines; Retain records for 
the current year they are drafted, plus two additional years.

Added short description. HR Employee File EEO Applicant Survey
Completed EEO survey provided to the US Equal Employment 
Opportunity Commission. CY+3 CY+3 N

GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California guidelines; 
closed/completion plus 3 years

Added legal citation. HR Employee File Employee Records

All personnel related materials and correspondences for Agreement, full 
time, part time, temporary/seasonal, and terminated employees; 
includes investigations/disciplinary actions; appraisals; completed tuition 
aide, FMLA, and HIPAA forms; FMLA letters and tracking calendars. 
Does not include medical leave records, worker's compensation or 
PERS information

PERM PERM N
GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California Guidelines; Non-
Public-Safety Employees, 3 years after termination; Benefit Plan 
Claims, Permanent.

HR Employee File Medical Records & Worker's Compensation Includes general employees; actual records pertaining to an employee's 
illness or injury

T+30 T+30 N

8 CCR 15400.2; Maintain reports; LC 110 - 139.6; 5 years for 
auditing; LC 6410; 29 CFR 1910.1020; 30 years after employee 
termination; State of California Guidelines; 30 years after 
termination

Added legal citation. HR Employee File Payroll Forms All personnel related completed payroll forms PERM PERM Y
GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California Guidelines; Non-
Public-Safety Employees, 3 years after termination.



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 15 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

Updated retention period, legal citation, and 
added short description. HR Grievance Employee Grievances Employee grievances and related documents/correspondence. T+2 PERM N

GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines; 
After employee termination plus 2 years. Decision: PERM for 
history of precedence setting.

Merged into one State & Federal 
Employment Verfication record series.

HR I-9s Completed I-9s Completed I-9s T+5 T+5 N Immigration Reform & Control Act; 5 year statue of limitations

Added short description. HR Job Description Position Information/Job Descriptions NCPA job descriptions. SUP+3 SUP+3 Y GC 34090 & 60201; 2 year minimum; State of California 
guidelines; 2 years after superseded

Updated short description; added legal 
citation

HR Org Charts Organization Charts NCPA organization charts not included in the Budget; original from 
Payroll. and included in budget

SUP+5 SUP+5 Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum.

Merged into one recruitment record series. HR Recruitment Job Flyers/Announcements AC+1 Y

GC 12946; 2 years after completion/position filled; GC 6250; 
Public Records Act, release of confidential information; 29 CFR 
1602.14; 1 year after position filled; 29 CFR 1607; Maintain 
EEOC demographic information; 29 CFR 1627.3; 1 year after 
position filled

Merged into one recruitment record series. HR Recruitment Position Recruitment Applications AC+1 Y

GC 12946; 2 years after completion/position filled; CFR 1602.14; 
1 year after position filled; 29 CFR 1607; Maintain EEOC 
demographic information; 29 CFR 1627.3; 1 year after position 
filled

Merged 3 recruitment record series into one; 
updated retention period. HR Recruitment Recruitment

Includes job announcements, prospective employee job applications and 
testing information. AC+1 AC+2 Y/N

Job announcements: GC 12946; 2 years after 
completion/position filled; GC 6250; Public Records Act, release 
of confidential information; 29 CFR 1602.14; 1 year after position 
filled; 29 CFR 1607; Maintain EEOC demographic information; 
29 CFR 1627.3; 1 year after position filled;
Applications & Testing Info: GC 12946; 2 years after 
completion/position filled; CFR 1602.14; 1 year after position 
filled; 29 CFR 1607; Maintain EEOC demographic information; 
29 CFR 1627.3; 1 year after position filled.

Merged into one recruitment record series. HR Recruitment Testing Information AC+1 N

GC 12946; 2 years after completion/position filled; CFR 1602.14; 
1 year after position filled; 29 CFR 1607; Maintain EEOC 
demographic information; 29 CFR 1627.3; 1 year after position 
filled

Merged into one record series for 
compensation. HR Salary Pay & Classification Plan

General pay and classification plan; does not include records for specific 
employees CY+5 Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum; GC 12946; 2 years after 
completion/position filled; 29 CFR  516.6(2);  2 years for wage 
rate and similar tables; 29 CFR 1602.14; 1 year after 
action/change; State of California Guidelines; Retain records for 
the current year they are drafted, plus two additional years.

Merged into one record series for 
compensation. HR Salary Salary Surveys & Reclassification Studies CY+5 Y/N

GC 34090; 2 year minimum; GC 12946; 2 years after 
completion/position filled; 29 CFR  516.6(2);  2 years for wage 
rate and similar tables; 29 CFR 1602.14; 1 year after 
action/change; State of California Guidelines; Retain records for 
the current year they are drafted, plus two additional years.

Merged into one record series and updated 
description. HR State & Federal Employment Verification Background checks; completed I-9s. T+5 N

Background checks: GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of 
California Guidelines; 3 years after termination
I-9s: Immigration Reform & Control Act; 5 year statue of 
limitations

Insurance Policy Agency Insurance Coverage Policies

Includes information pertaining to insurance programs such as pooled 
liability, property, public official bond, workers compensation, identity 
theft, etc.; damage claims involving Agency employees; personal and 
damage claims against the Agency

PERM PERM Y CCP 337.2 & 343; Statute of limitations, 4 years; State of 
California Guidelines; Permanent



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 16 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

Removed from retention policy. NCPA does 
not have these. Bonds are included within the 
Agency insurance policy.

Insurance Policy Employee Bonds Employee fidelity bonds T+4 Y
GC 34090; 2 years minimum; CCP 337 & 343, Statutes of 
limitations, 4 years; State of California Guidelines; Termination or 
separation plus 2 years; 03-00-00 Legal & Legislative Function

Merged into one claim record series. Legal Claims Claims by/against Agency Claims filed by/against NCPA; whether paid or denied AC+10 Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum; 29 USC 1113; ERISA claim; 6 years 
after date of last action or 3 years after plaintiff had knowledge of 
breach or violation, whichever comes first; GC 910-913; Statute 
of limitations; 6 months to 1 year after event occurs; State of 
California guidelines; 5 years after settlement or closure

Merged claim records into one record series. Legal Claims Claims, Lien & Release Support

Insurance: in connection with losses and claims against insurance 
companies; GL posting, remittance, report, letter, etc. Some on 
SharePoint and some not; Legal Proceedings: Claims filed by/against 
NCPA; whether paid or denied; including settlement agreements; 
supporting documents for liens and releases.

AC+10 AC+10 Y/N

Insurance: 18 CFR § 125.3(12)(b); 6 years;
Legal Proceedings: GC 34090; 2 year minimum; 29 USC 1113; 
ERISA claim; 6 years after date of last action or 3 years after 
plaintiff had knowledge of breach or violation, whichever comes 
first; GC 910-913; Statute of limitations; 6 months to 1 year after 
event occurs; State of California guidelines; 5 years after 
settlement or closure;
Lien/Release Support: GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of 
California Guidelines; After closure plus 2 years for supporting 
documentation.

Legal Claims Liens & Releases Recorded liens PERM PERM Y GC 34090; destruction not authorized; State of California 
guidelines; Permanent for recorded liens

Merged into one claim record series. Legal Claims Liens & Releases Supporting Information Supporting documents for liens and releases AC+10 Y GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California Guidelines; After 
closure plus 2 years for supporting documentation

Merged into one claim record series. Legal Claims Records related to Insurance Claims
In connection with losses and claims against insurance companies; GL 
posting, remittance, report, letter, etc. Some on SharePoint and some 
not.

AC+10 Y/N 18 CFR § 125.3(12)(b); 6 years

Merged into one Legal record series. Legal Litigation Litigation & Regulatory Proceedings Court records, filings, all documentation; including those with FERC, 
CPUC, CEC, NERC

AC+10 Y GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California Guidelines; After 
closure plus 7 years

2016: updated retention and short 
description. Legal LSRs Legal Service Requests

Completed & signed Legal Service Requests that are not captured in 
another record series. not related to agreements

AC+2 or follow 
retention with 
associated 
Agreement or 
Legal Opinion

AC+2 
or follow 
retention with 
associated 
Agreement or 
Legal Opinion

Y
GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California guidelines; 
Current year plus 2 years

Merged into one Air Permit Notice record 
series. Legal Notices

24 - Hour notification  to district prior to 
shutting down emissions monitoring 
equipment for maintenance

Notifications are made via phone call and then followed up with an email. 
The email should reside in SharePoint. CY+5 Y based on permit

Merged into other related record series. Legal Notices Legal Notices

Includes public notices and legal publications for Commission and 
Committee meetings, procurement process, and other legal publication 
requirements; notices have the same retention period as the specific 
thing they are about (i.e., CEQA, Public Works, Commission meetings, 
etc.)

[follow 
retention with 
the associated 
function]

Y GC 34090; 2 year minimum; CCP 343,349 et seq.; Statute of 
limitations

Merged into one Air Permit Notice record 
series. Legal Notices

Notifications of Exceedence or Breakdowns 
related to Permits

Verbal notification to districts (FERC, BLM, CEC, etc.) of a exceedence 
of permit conditions; notifications are made via phone call and then 
followed up with an email. The email should reside in SharePoint.  

CY+5 Y based on permit

Merged into associated permits record 
series.

Legal Notices Notifications related to Air Permits

24 - Hour notification to district prior to shutting down emissions 
monitoring equipment for maintenance; notifications of exceedence or 
breakdowns related to permits to districts (FERC, BLM, CEC, etc.); 
notifications are made via phone and then followed up with an email 
(which should be saved into SharePoint).

CY+5 CY+5 Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum.



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 17 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

Added short description. Legal
Public Records 
Request Public Records Requests Public Records Requests and related correspondence. AC+2 AC+2 Y

GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines; 2 
years after completion

Merged into one Legal record series. Legal Regulatory Orders Formal Orders of Regulatory Commissions 
served upon the Agency

Includes titles, franchises, and licenses.
FERC, CPUC, CEC, NERC

AC+10 Y 18 CFR § 125.3(2)(b); 6 years after final non-appealable order

Merged litigation and regulatory records into 
one record series.

Legal Legal & Regulatory Proceedings
Court records, filings and comments to filings, subpoenas, attestations, 
and other supporting documentation; includes titles, franchises, and 
licenses; including those with FERC, CPUC, CEC, NERC.

AC+10 AC+10 Y/N

Court Records: GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California 
Guidelines; After closure plus 7 years;
Formal Court Orders: 18 CFR § 125.3(2)(b); 6 years after final 
non-appealable order.

Merged with Official Commission and 
Executive Committee Meeting Documents. Meetings

Brown Act (Public) 
Commission & 
Committee Meeting 
Materials

Commission Agenda Packets Commission only CY+4 Y
Reference only; GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California 
guidelines; current year plus 2 years

Updated legal citation and short description; 
Updated minor category.

Meetings

Brown Act (Public) 
Commission & 
Committee Meeting 
Materials

Official Commission & Executive 
Committee Meeting Documents

Commission & Executive Committee only; includes all documents 
related to these meetings, including any closed session documents (i.e., 
public notices, legal publications, agendas, minutes, notes, attendance 
lists, presentations, meeting materials, staff reports, resolutions, 
confidential memos to the Commission). Confidential memos are not 
stored in SharePoint based upon legal counsel advice regarding 
confidentiality.
Commission & Executive Committee only; includes all documents 
related to these meetings (i.e., agendas, minutes, notes, attendance 
lists, presentations, meeting materials, staff reports, resolutions)

PERM PERM Y/N

Commission documents: GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of 
California guidelines; superseded plus 2 years Commission 
Memos: GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California 
Guidelines; Current year plus 2; Administrative Decision: 
permanent

Updated minor category. Meetings Brown Act (Public) 
Committees

Brown Act (Public) Committee Documents

Brown Act Committees: Facilities, Legal, Finance, L&R Affairs, LEC 
PPC; includes all documents related to these meetings (i.e., attendance 
lists, staff reports, presentations, meeting materials, agendas, 
minutesbusiness progress report)

CY+15 CY+15 Y
GC 34090; 2 years minimum; Administrative Decision: Current 
Year plus 10 years for reference purposes; GC 36814; Maintain 
record of proceedings

Updated short description retention period, 
and minor category. Meetings

Commendations 
(Public) Commission 
& Committee Meeting 
Materials

Commendations/Proclamations
Commendations and proclamations issued by the Commission or NCPA 
Management team for recognition of service, retirement, etc.
Commission only; not assigned to a resolution or ordinance number

CY+4 CY+10 Y
GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California guidelines; 
superseded plus 2 years

New listing. Meetings External General Meeting Materials
Meeting Materials, presentations, notes from meetings with external 
parties that is kept as pertinent reference. CY+2 Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum.

Updated minor category. Meetings
non Brown Act (non 
Public) Committees

non Brown Act (non Public) Meeting 
Documents

Non Brown Act Committees: Pooling, UDs, ROC, RMC, Public Benefits, 
Agency Safety, HQ Safety, EARC, Clearance, Electrical Safety, 
Quarterly Safety, Geo Safety, Hydro Safety, CT Safety, Coordinated 
Operations Group, External Affairs, CMOC, Northern California 
Municipal Power Corporation, ITSC; includes all documents related to 
these meetings (i.e., attendance lists, staff reports, presentations, 
meeting materials, agendas, minutes)

CY+10 CY+10 Y
GC 34090; 2 years minimum; Administrative Decision: Current 
Year plus 10 years for reference purposes

Added legal citation. Meetings Presentations General Presentations
Includes presentations that do not fall under another record series; e.g., 
Credit Rating presentations, non Committee/Commission budget 
presentations

CY+10 CY+10 Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum.

Updated minor category. Meetings Staff Meetings Staff Meeting Documents
Departmental staff meetings and meeting notes for non-formal meetings; 
non-agenda related reports and supporting documentation CY+2 CY+2 Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum;  Administrative Record, State of 
California Guidelines

Merged into one FERC license/long term 
permit record series.

Permits Air Permits emissions PERM Y

Merged into one FERC license/long term 
permit record series.

Permits Air Receiver Permits Posted at location and hard copy scanned into SharePoint PERM Y/N



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 18 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

changed retention; AE makes more sense 
than SUP; additional year to incorporate 
other listings. Merged records into one 
Annual Permit record series; added legal 
citation.

Permits Annual Renewal Permits Includes underground storage tank permit; posted on location and 
renewed annually; scan hard copy into SharePoint.

SUP+1 AE+2 Y/N

GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines; Non-
Construction Permits; 2 year minimum after closure/completion; 
Underground Storage Tank Maintenance & Operation; 2 year 
minimum.

Merged into one FERC license/long term 
permit record series. Permits CEC Permit Licenses PERM Y

Merged into one External Work Permit listing. Permits
Confined Space  (Permits- completed or 
cancelled) Used for specific events, generally lasting 1-2 weeks CY+2 Y  29CFR 1910.146; 1 year after cancellation/expiration 

Merged into one Permit Certification record 
series. Permits Crane Certification

Posted at location and hard copy scanned into SharePoint; these are 
applicable for current year only SUP Y/N

Merged into one FERC license/long term 
permit record series. Permits Disposal Permits PERM Y

Merged into one FERC license/long term 
permit record series.

Permits Encroachment Permits PERM Y GC 34090(a) Real property records, maintain Permanently; GC 
4003, 4004; H&S 19850; Life of Building, with exceptions

Merged into one External Work Permit listing. Permits Excavating Permits
Posted at location and hard copy scanned into SharePoint; these are 
applicable for duration of the project CY+2 Y/N State of California guidelines; close/completion plus 2 years

Updated short description and record series 
title to add related filings/reports.
Created new listing to bring together CY+2 
and CY+4 permit listings.

Permits External Work Permits and Reports

Includes permits related to confined space (used for specific events, 
generally lasting 1-2 weeks); excavating (posted at location and hard 
copy scanned into SharePoint; these are applicable for duration of the 
project); hot work external (permit needed to perform welding, torching, 
burning etc. granted by an external agency such as USFS; hard copy 
and/or pdf; applicable for the specific job). Also includes related 
filings/reports showing compliance with the permit and associated 
notifications such as notifications  to districts; notifications are made via 
phone and then followed up with an email (which should be saved into 
SharePoint).

AC+2 Y/N

Confined Space: 29CFR 1910.146; 1 year after 
cancellation/expiration;
Excavating: State of California guidelines; close/completion plus 
2 years;
Hot Work External: 8 CCR 6777(i); 6 months after date of issue

Merged into one FERC license/long term 
permit record series.

Permits FERC Licenses PERM Y

Merged into one FERC license/long term 
permit record series.

Permits Grading Permits PERM Y GC 34090(a) Real property records, maintain Permanently; GC 
4003, 4004; H&S 19850; Life of Building, with exceptions

Updated short description and record series 
title to include filings/reports. Permits

Hazardous Materials Storage Permits and 
Reports
Hazardous Materials Storage Permits 
Renewal

Includes the permit, filings/reports showing compliance with the permit, 
and associated notifications such as notifications  to districts of 
exceedence or breakdowns related to permits; notifications are made via 
phone and then followed up with an email (which should be saved into 
SharePoint).; Posted at location and hard copy scanned into SharePoint.
Posted at location and hard copy scanned into SharePoint

CY+20 AE+20 Y/N
State of California guidelines; current year plus 2 years; 
Administrative decision; after expiration plus 20 years based on 
CERCLA/Superfund contribution liability

Merged into one External Work Permit listing. Permits Hot Work - External Permit
Permit needed to perform welding, torching, burning etc. granted by an 
external agency such as USFS; hard copy and/or pdf; applicable for the 
specific job

CY+4 Y/N 8 CCR 6777(i); 6 months after date of issue

Updated record series from "Hot Work - 
Internal Permit) and short description.

Permits Internal Work Permit
Hot work - Internal Permit

These are hard copies. Permit needed to perform welding, torching, 
burning etc. issued by NCPA under the Hot Work Safety Procedure; 
hard copy and/or pdf; applicable for the specific job; includes associated 
notifications.

CM+6 Months CM+6 Months Y/N  8 CCR 6777(i); 6 months after date of issue 



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 19 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

Merged all permanent permits into one 
record series. Updated short description and 
record series title to include associated 
filings/reports. Permits Long Term Permits & FERC Licenses

Includes FERC licenses; USFS Special Use Permits (long term), air 
permits; air receiver permits; CEC permit licenses; disposal permits; 
encroachment permits; grading permits; production well permits, 
including BLM Sundry notice, CARB AFC/Operating, DOGGR; 
underground storage tank compliance; operations permits; also includes 
filings/reports showing compliance with permits and associated 
notifications such as 24 - Hour notification to district prior to shutting 
down emissions monitoring equipment for maintenance; notifications  to 
districts of exceedence or breakdowns related to permits; notifications 
are made via phone and then followed up with an email (which should be 
saved into SharePoint).

PERM PERM Y

Encroachment & Grading; GC 34090(a) Real property records, 
maintain Permanently; GC 4003, 4004; H&S 19850; Life of 
Building, with exceptions;
NPDES: 40  CFR 122.41(j)(2)-(3); 5 years for sewage sludge use 
and disposal activities; 3 years for all other monitoring 
information, etc. related to permit

Merged into one FERC license/long term 
permit record series. Permits

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System Permits

Permit issued by the State Water Resources Control Board, Regional 
Water Quality Control Board, or Environmental Protection Agency. PERM Y

 40  CFR 122.41(j)(2)-(3); 5 years for sewage sludge use and 
disposal activities; 3 years for all other monitoring information, 
etc. related to permit 

Combined NPDES permits with supporting 
documents, updated record series name and 
retention.

Permits National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System Permits Supporting Documents

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permits 
(issued by the State Water Resources Control Board, Regional Water 
Quality Control Board, or Environmental Protection Agency) and 
supporting documents such as submittals, laboratory test results, 
associated notifications such as 24 - Hour notification to district prior to 
shutting down emissions monitoring equipment for maintenance; 
notifications  to districts of exceedence or breakdowns related to 
permits; notifications are made via phone and then followed up with an 
email (which should be saved into SharePoint)., etc. Supporting 
documents, submittals, laboratory test results, etc. for National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System Permits

AE+10 SUP+10 Y
 40  CFR 122.41(j)(2)-(3); 5 years for sewage sludge use and 
disposal activities; 3 years for all other monitoring information, 
etc. related to permit 

Changed retention to AE; makes more sense 
than SUP.
Merged certifications into one record series; 
added legal citation.

Permits Permit Certifications
Includes air receiver certification, crane certification, and other permit-
related certifications; associated notifications Posted at location and 
hard copy scanned into SharePoint.

SUP AE+2 Y/N GC 34090; 2 years minimum.

Merged into Short Term Permit listing. Permits Pressure Vessels Permits Posted at location and hard copy scanned into SharePoint SUP+2 Y/N

Merged into one FERC license/long term 
permit record series. Permits Production Well - Permits BLM Sundry notice, CARB AFC/Operating, DOGGR PERM Y

Updated name of record series and short 
description. Permits

Short Term Permits
Miscellaneous Permits

USFS Special Use Permits (short term), RWQCB sump discharge 
permits, pressure vessel permits, UST permits, etc. Also includes related 
reports/filings showing compliance and associated notifications such as 
notifications  to districts; notifications are made via phone and then 
followed up with an email (which should be saved into SharePoint).
USFS Special Use Permits, RWQCB sump discharge permits, pressure 
vessel permits, UST permits, etc.

AE+4 AE+4 Y GC 34090; 2 year minimum

Merged into one FERC license/long term 
permit record series.

Permits Underground Storage Tank Compliance & 
Operations Permit

PERM Y

Merged into one Annual Permit record series. Permits
Underground Storage Tank Permits - 
Annual Renewal Posted at location and renewed annually SUP+1 N

Added listing to incorporate all photos and 
logos mentioned in the short description; 
added legal citation;  All are made MWC with 
the idea that a person will need to manually 
choose to delete them.

Photo Images
Includes logos of NCPA Members, Customers, and Project Participants; 
stock photos; facility photos taken by staff, project-related photos, 
employee association photos, event/celebration photos, etc.

TEMP Y 64 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 317 (1981).



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 20 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

Merged into one images record series called 
Logos & Images. Photo Member Logos Official member logos TEMP Y

Merged into one Official Photos & Logos 
record series. Photo NCPA High-Quality Facility Photos High quality professional photographs of facilities PERM Y

Merged into one images record series called 
Logos & Images. Photo NCPA Photos

Includes non-high quality facility photographs, employee association 
photos, event/celebration photos, etc. TEMP Y

Merged into one Official Photos & Logos 
record series. Photo Official NCPA Logos High res official logos; does not include copies (e.g., low res) PERM Y

Merged high-quality facility photos and 
official NCPA logos into one record series. Photo Official Photos & Logos

Professional photographs of facilities and high resolution official NCPA 
logos; does not include copies (low resolution versions) PERM PERM Y 64 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 317 (1981).

Merged into one images record series called 
Logos & Images. Photo Stock Photos SUP Y

Merged into one policy and procedure record 
series. Policies & Procedures Administrative Policies & Procedures

Administrative Policies only; not those approved by Commission; 
includes forms, checklists, other reference material related to the policy 
and/or procedure

SUP+7 Y
GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California guidelines; 
Administrative Record; recommends retaining for 5 years after 
superseded

Merged into one policy and procedure record 
series. Policies & Procedures Commission Policies

Policies/programs approved by Commission; includes forms, checklists, 
other reference material related to the policy and/or procedure SUP+7 Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California guidelines; 
Administrative Record; recommends retaining for 5 years after 
superseded

Merged into one policy and procedure record 
series. Policies & Procedures Emergency Action Plan/Procedure

Emergency Response Plan/Procedure (ERP), Emergency Action 
Plan/Procedure (EAP) SUP+7 Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California guidelines; 
Administrative Record; recommends retaining for 5 years after 
superseded

Merged into one policy and procedure record 
series. Policies & Procedures General Department Procedures Procedures used within a department for day to day activities SUP+7 Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California guidelines; 
Administrative Record; recommends retaining for 5 years after 
superseded

Merged into one policy and procedure record 
series. Policies & Procedures Operating Procedures SUP+7 Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California guidelines; 
Administrative Record; recommends retaining for 5 years after 
superseded

Merged into one policy and procedure record 
series. Policies & Procedures Personnel Rules, Regulations, Policies SUP+7 Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California guidelines; 
Administrative Record; recommends retaining for 5 years after 
superseded

Updated record series to combine all listings 
into one; updated short description. Policies & Procedures Policies and Procedures

Agency and department policies and procedures; including those 
requiring formal approval and those that do not, Emergency Response 
Plan/Procedure (ERP), Risk Management Plan/Process Safety 
Management, IIPP Safety Program, technology related, day-to-day 
activity related, etc.

SUP+7 SUP+7 Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California guidelines; 
Administrative Record; recommends retaining for 5 years after 
superseded; Risk Management Plan: 40 CFR 68.67; at least life 
of the process

Merged into one policy and procedure record 
series. Policies & Procedures Retention Policies & Procedures SUP+7 Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California guidelines; 
Administrative Record; recommends retaining for 5 years after 
superseded

Merged into one policy and procedure record 
series. Policies & Procedures

Risk Management Plan / Process Safety 
Management Process hazard analysis; updated every 5 years SUP+7 Y  40 CFR 68.67; at least life of the process 

Merged into one policy and procedure record 
series. Policies & Procedures Safety Program Policies & Procedures Includes IIPP SUP+7 Y

Merged into one policy and procedure record 
series. Policies & Procedures Technology Policies & Procedures

Policies, procedures, standards regarding information systems use and 
maintenance SUP+7 Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California guidelines; 
Administrative Record; recommends retaining for 5 years after 
superseded

Change to AA+5 and merged with 
Procurement Documents listing. Procurement Authorizations for expenditures (AFE) Related to Plant accounts and construction AA+6 Y

18 CFR 125.3; 5 years after clearance to plant account, provided 
continuing plant inventory records are maintained; otherwise 5 
years after plant is retired



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 21 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

Merged into one procurement record type 
and record series. Procurement Formal Bids/RFPs/RFQs/RFIs

Includes successful & unsuccessful formal bids, Requests for 
Qualification, Requests for Proposal, and Requests for Information AA+5 Y

GC 34090; 2 years minimum; CCP 337; Statute of limitations; 
State of California Guidelines; 5 years after audit, successful; 2 
years after audit, unsuccessful

Merged into one procurement record type 
and record series.

Procurement Informal Bids Documents related to informal bids, and quotes AA+5 Y

Merged into one procurement record type 
and record series. Procurement Power & Gas RFPs

Requests for Proposal for Power, Gas, Capacity, RECs, and other 
authorized commodities (e.g., Natural Gas Purchase Program or Market 
Power Purchase Program with terms greater than or equal to one month 
in duration)

AA+5 Y

Merged into one procurement record type 
and record series. Procurement Pre-qualification Questionnaire Applications AA+5 Y GC 34090; 2 year minimum

new listing to combine all other listings into 
one line. Procurement

Procurement of Services, Materials, 
Commodities

Documents associated with the procurement of services, materials, and 
commodities (power, gas, capacity, RECs and other authorized 
commodities); including bids and bid packages, protests, proof of 
publication, bid sign in sheets, Requests for Qualification, Requests for 
Proposal, and Requests for Information; quotes; pre-qualification 
questionnaires, procurement notices, vendor evaluations, vendor 
proposals, etc.; bid summary in ReQlogic; Public Works bid packages 
must be tied to the specific Agreement.

AA+5 AA+5 Y/N
GC 34090; 2 years minimum; CCP 337; Statute of limitations; 
State of California Guidelines; 5 years after audit, successful; 2 
years after audit, unsuccessful.

new listing Projects Business Projects General projects for improving efficiencies 
and overall business activities

Documents related to projects for improving efficiencies and overall 
business activities, including project plan, timeline, progress reports, test 
cases, testing deployment plans, testing acceptance, checklists, and 
other supporting documentation throughout the life of the project.

AC+5 Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum.

Merged several records into one Engineering 
Records record series. Projects Engineering

Engineering Records, Drawings, and 
Supporting Documentation

Includes the following engineering records: authorization for 
expenditures (AFE), calculators, correspondence, drawings, notes, O&M 
manuals, engineering reports, scope of work, specifications, studies, 
field service reports, soil reports, Collierville rerating studies, WECC 
related key planning studies and reports; also includes same records for 
proposed or constructed utility facilities.

LOP+2 LOP+2 Y 18 CFR § 125.3(21); retain until facility retired

Merged into one Engineering Records record 
series.

Projects Engineering Records Collierville Rerating Studies LOP+2 Y

Merged into one Engineering Records record 
series.

Projects Engineering Records Engineering Records, Drawings, and 
Supporting Data

LOP+2 Y 18 CFR § 125.3(21); retain until facility retired

Merged into one Engineering Records record 
series.

Projects Engineering Records Engineering records:  For proposed or 
constructed utility facilities

Includes maps, diagrams, profiles, photos, field survey notes, project 
studies, O&M manuals, etc.

LOP+2 Y 18 CFR § 125.3(21); retain until facility retired

Merged into one Engineering Records record 
series. Projects Engineering Records Soil Reports

Includes geotechnical reports, environmental soil sampling, etc.; these 
are typically in SharePoint and/or in historical engineering/construction 
files

LOP+2 Y

Merged into one Engineering Records record 
series.

Projects Engineering Records WECC related key planning studies and 
reports

LOP+2 Y

Merged drawings and specifications into one 
record series and updated minor category 
and record series to include O&M.

Projects O&M, Capital & 
Public Works

O&M, Capital Improvement and Public 
Works Projects Specifications

Includes plans, specifications, and drawings for Operations & 
Maintenance (O&M), Capital Improvement and Public Works Projects; 
does not include other related support documentation.

PERM PERM Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum; 29 USC 1113; ERISA Statue of 
Limitations; 6 years; CCP 337; Statute of Limitations 4 years; 
CCP 337.15; 10 years after completion; State of California 
guidelines; Permanent

Merged several records into one record 
series; added new minor category and added 
O&M.

Projects O&M, Capital & 
Public Works

O&M, Capital Improvement and Public 
Works Projects Supporting Documents

Includes maps, correspondence, calculators, operations tools, project 
economics, notes, reports, schedules, and other supporting documents 
related to Operations & Maintenance (O&M), Capital Improvement and 
Public Works Projects; does not include drawings or specifications.

AC+10 AC+10 Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum; 29 USC 1113; ERISA Statue of 
Limitations; 6 years; CCP 337; Statute of Limitations 4 years; 
CCP 337.15; 10 years after completion; State of California 
guidelines; Permanent.



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 22 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

Merged into one Project Specification record 
series. Projects

O&M, Capital & 
Public Works Project

O&M, Capital Improvement  and Public 
Works Projects

Includes plans and specifications for O&M, Capital Improvement and 
Public Works Projects PERM Y

GC 34090;  2 year minimum; 29 USC 1113; ERISA Statue of 
Limitations; 6 years; CCP 337; Statute of Limitations 4 years; 
CCP 337.15; 10 years after completion; State of California 
guidelines; Permanent

Merged into one Project Support record 
series. Projects

O&M, Capital & 
Public Works Project

O&M, Capital Improvement  and Public 
Works Projects Supporting Documents

Includes maps, correspondence, and other supporting documents 
related to Capital Improvement and Public Works Projects; Project 
Schedule

AC+10 Y

GC 34090;  2 year minimum; 29 USC 1113; ERISA Statue of 
Limitations; 6 years; CCP 337; Statute of Limitations 4 years; 
CCP 337.15; 10 years after completion; State of California 
guidelines; Permanent

Merged with bios and headshots into one 
record series.

Public Relations Brochures General NCPA Brochures TEMP Y

Merged into one Facility brochures, press 
releases record series.

Public Relations Brochures Plant Brochures LOP+2 Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines; 
Superseded plus 7

updated description; updated retention period Public Relations Events NCPA Hosted Event Materials
Includes Tour materials, Federal Policy Conference materials, and 
APPA Rally materials; event planning, and other NCPA hosted events CY+10 Y

GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines; 
Current year plus 2

Merged into one Newsletters and Ad Radio 
Campaigns record series.

Public Relations Newsletters Newsletters NCPA weekly, plant newsletters CY+5 Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines; 
Superseded plus 2

Merged into one Legislative Policy, NCPA 
Hosted Events, Editorials, and General Press 
Releases record series.

Public Relations Presentations
Presentations on Legislative and 
Regulatory Briefings May also include a white paper CY+10 Y

GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines; 
Current year plus 2

Merged into one Newsletters and Ad Radio 
Campaigns record series.

Public Relations Press Ad Radio Campaigns Scripts, audio files CY+5 Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines; 
Current year plus 2

Merged general brochures and 
bios/headshots into one record series.

Public Relations Press Bios & Headshots Bios and headshots for NCPA executive team and Commissioners; 
those related to an event are kept within those publications

TEMP Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines; 
Current year plus 2

Merged into one Facility public relations 
record series.

Public Relations Press Facility Brochures, Press Releases Includes brochures and press releases related to NCPA Facilities. LOP+2 LOP+2 Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines; 
Superseded plus 2

Merged general brochures and 
bios/headshots into one record series.

Public Relations Press General NCPA Brochures, Bios & 
Headshots

Includes general NCPA brochures; bios and headshots for NCPA 
executive team and Commissioners; those related to an event are kept 
within those publications.

TEMP TEMP Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines; 
Superseded plus 2

Merged into one Legislative Policy, NCPA 
Hosted Events, Editorials, and General Press 
Releases record series.

Public Relations Press General Press Releases CY+10 Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines; 
Current year plus 2

Merged into one Public Relations listing.
Merged several records into one NCPA 
Event record series; updated name of record 
series from "Legislative Policy and NCPA 
Hosted Event Program".
2014: combined record series NCPA Hosted 
Event Materials and Legislative Policy and 
NCPA Hosted Event Program.

Public Relations Press Legislative Policy, NCPA Hosted Events, 
Editorials, and General Press Releases

Includes policy position papers, event programs, Tour materials, Federal 
Policy Conference materials, and APPA Rally materials; event planning, 
and other NCPA hosted events; also includes presentations on L&R 
briefings, opinion editorials and general press releases; scripts and 
audio files; newsletters (i.e., NCPA Weekly newsletter, Facility 
newsletters, etc.).

CY+5 CY+10 Y

Event Programs: GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of 
California Guidelines; Current year plus 7;
Newsletters & scripts: GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of 
California Guidelines; Superseded plus 2.

Merged into one Legislative Policy, NCPA 
Hosted Events, Editorials, and General Press 
Releases record series.

Public Relations Press Opinion Editorials (OP ED) CY+10 Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines; 
Current year plus 2

Merged into one Facility brochures, press 
releases record series.

Public Relations Press Plant Press Releases Press releases regarding NCPA plants LOP+2 Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines; 
Current year plus 2

Updated short description and record series 
name. Real Property Appraisals

Appraisals and Valuations - 
properties/investments

Made by Agency of its properties or investments or those of associated 
companies LOP+2 LOP+2 Y 18 CFR § 125.3(20)(a); 3 years after appraisal



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 23 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

Updated short description. Real Property Land/Property Files Land/Property Files

Includes easements, lot line adjustments, deeds, quitclaim deeds, 
acquisitions/dedications of Real Property, escrow closing agreements, 
legal descriptions, correspondence related to purchase, etc.; does not 
include the Agreements themselves; original Deeds are held with the 
County.

PERM PERM Y GC 34090(a); Permanent for property related records; State of 
California Guidelines; Permanent

Merged various reference material into one 
general reference record series. Reference General General References

Includes APPA safety manual; notes used within a department for day to 
day activities; media references, including Software user guides, 
manuals, and other reference materials; Legislative policy references; 
technical references, manuals, guidelines and reference materials for 
general office management and equipment; vendor technical manuals; 
vendor brochures, pamphlets, and general information about each 
vendor (save in SharePoint based on individual's choice); bulletins 
related to products, services and safety; training, conference, or external 
meeting handouts.

SUP SUP Y/N

State of California Guidelines; Administrative Record; Reference 
documents and books, no required retention.
Vendors: State of California Guidelines; While active; does not 
include vendor registers (alphabetical vendor listing of purchase 
orders, invoices, account numbers and check dates), which are 
kept permanently per State of California guidelines.

Merged into one general reference record 
series.

Reference General Reference Software Program Media Software user guides, manuals, and other reference materials SUP Y State of California Guidelines; Administrative Record; Reference 
documents and books, no required retention.

Merged into one general reference record 
series. Reference General Reference Technical Reference

Technical references, manuals, guidelines and reference materials for 
general office management and equipment; also Includes vendor 
technical manuals

SUP Y
State of California Guidelines; Administrative Record; Reference 
documents and books, no required retention.

Merged into one general reference record 
series. Reference General Reference Vendor Information

Includes brochures, pamphlets, and general information about each 
vendor; save in SharePoint based on individual's choice SUP Y

State of California Guidelines; While Active; Does not include 
Vendor Registers (alphabetical vendor listing of purchase orders, 
invoices, account numbers and check dates), which are kept 
PERMANENTLY per State of California Guidelines.

Merged into one general reference record 
series.

Reference Policy Reference Legislative Policy Reference Documents SUP Y

Merged into one general reference record 
series.

Reference Safety Reference APPA Safety Manual SUP Y

Reference Safety Reference Safety Data Sheets CTs uses hard copies; a link to the SDS system to view online is 
available to all facilities; Hydro has hard copies and SharePoint

CY+30 CY+30 Y/N

1910.1020(d)(1)(ii)(B) 30 years; safety data sheets need not be 
retained for any specified period as long as some record of the 
identity (chemical name if known) of the substance or agent, 
where it was used, and when it was used is retained for at least 
thirty (30) years

Merged into one internal & external reports, 
studies, & surveys record series.

Reporting Ad Hoc Reports General and ad-hoc financial reports Includes the Greenhouse Gas Summary, member/participant requests, 
internal requests, one-off requested reports, etc.

CY+7 Y/N

Merged all air permit report lines into one 
record series. Reporting Air Permit Air Permit Reports

Includes EDR report, startup, shutdown, breakdown; Continuous 
Emissions Monitor System and other non Title V reports; annual and 6 
month reports, Continuous Emissions Monitor System Title V; Title V 
reports completed by all Facilities; annual compliance testing; emissions 
air data; quarterly written report to district.

CY+5 CY+5 Y per Air Permit itself; Non Title V: 40 CFR 60.7(f)

Merged into one Air Permit Report record 
series. Reporting Air Permit Annual Compliance Testing Report CY+5 Y Per Air permit itself

Merged into one Air Permit Report record 
series. Reporting Air Permit Emissions Air Data Report Startup, shutdown, breakdown, etc. CY+5 Y Per Air permit itself

Merged into one Air Permit Report record 
series. Reporting Air Permit Non Title V Report

Includes Continuous Emissions Monitor System and other non Title V 
reports CY+5 Y  40 CFR 60.7(f) 

Merged into one Air Permit Report record 
series. Reporting Air Permit Other Air Permit Reports CY+5 Y Per Air permit itself

Merged into one Air Permit Report record 
series. Reporting Air Permit

Quarterly EDR (Electronic Data Reporting) 
to EPA CY+5 Y Per Air permit itself and EPA



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 24 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

Merged into one Air Permit Report record 
series. Reporting Air Permit Quarterly Written Report to District CY+5 Y Per Air permit itself

Merged into one Air Permit Report record 
series. Reporting Air Permit Title V Report to District

Includes annual and 6 month reports, Continuous Emissions Monitor 
System Title V; Title V reports completed by all Facilities CY+5 Y Per Air permit itself

Merged all external audit listings into one 
record series; updated minor category. Reporting Audit Report External Audit Reports

Includes reports of examinations and audits by accountants and auditors 
not in the regular employ of the Agency (such as records of public 
accounting firms and commission accountants) such as sales tax, 
royalties, Federal or State audit for grants, PERS, Workers 
Compensation, IRS, etc.; NERC/Cyber Security (CIP) Compliance Audit; 
actual audit report, does not include workpapers.
Includes reports of examinations and audits by accountants and auditors 
not in the regular employ of the Agency (such as records of public 
accounting firms and commission accountants) such as sales tax, 
royalties, Federal or State audit for grants, PERS, Workers 
Compensation, IRS, etc.

PERM PERM Y 8 CFR § 125.3(4)GC 34090; 5 years after report; Sate of 
California guidelines; 7 years after audit

Updated minor category. Reporting Audit Report Internal Audit Report Actual audit report; does not include work papers AA+10 AA+10 Y
8 CFR § 125.3(4)GC 34090; 5 years after report; Sate of 
California guidelines; 7 years after audit

Merged into one External Audits record 
series. Reporting Audit Report

NERC/Cyber Security (CIP) Compliance 
Audit PERM Y

Merged several records into one record 
series and updated short description. Reporting Financial Monthly & Annual Budget Reports

Includes year-end budget to actual cost summary or budget status 
reports by Facility; monthly cost summary reports, budget status reports, 
budget management reports, encumbrance reports; business progress 
report; GOR reports, purchase order reports, and others as developed 
by Accounting.

FY+6 FY+6 Y/N
GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines; 
current year plus 2

Added legal citation. Reporting Financial NCPA Annual Report (package) Could be a hardcopy or on CD PERM PERM N GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines; 
Annual Financial Report; 2 years after closure/completion.

Updated minor category Reporting Financial Reports Actuarial Report Includes CalPERS, Employee Medical, etc. PERM PERM Y
GC 34090; 2 years minimum; 29 CFR 1627 et al; Maintain 3 
years; State of California guidelines; close/completion plus 5 
years

Merged into one monthly and annual budget 
report record series.

Reporting Financial Reports Annual Budget Reports Year-end Budget to Actual Cost Summary or Budget Status Reports by 
Facility

FY+6 Y

Updated minor category Reporting Financial Reports Debt , Credit Rating, & Arbitrage Reporting
Calculations of arbitrage liabilities for bonds; includes credit rating 
summaries, rating agency reports AE+10 AE+10 Y

GC 34090; 2 years minimum; GC 43900-43903; Destruction 
guidelines for bonds; CCP 337.5; Statute of limitations, 10 years; 
FC 30210; Maintain; State of California guidelines; 10 years after 
closure/expiration

Merged into one monthly and annual budget 
report record series. Reporting Financial Reports Departmental Budget Reports

Cost Summary reports, Budget Status reports, Budget management 
reports FY+6 Y

GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines; 
current year plus 2

Merged into one monthly and annual budget 
report record series. Reporting Financial Reports Monthly GOR Reports FY+6 Y

Updated minor category Reporting Financial Reports State Controllers Reports - Agency State Controller's Report prepared by NCPA PERM PERM Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines; 
Permanent 

Updated minor category; added legal citation. Reporting Financial Reports Treasurer's Report Treasurer's Report prepared by NCPA PERM PERM Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines; 
Annual Financial Report; 2 years after closure/completion.

Merged into one Hazardous Waste record 
series. Reporting Hazardous Waste Biennial Reports CY+4 Y  40 CFR 262.40(b); 3 years from due date of report 

Merged into one Hazardous Waste record 
series. Reporting Hazardous Waste Chemical Emissions Reports CY+4 Y



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 25 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

Merged into one Hazardous Waste record 
series. Reporting Hazardous Waste Disposal Receipts Reporting CY+4 Y

Merged into one Hazardous Waste record 
series. Reporting Hazardous Waste Exception Reports CY+4 Y  40 CFR 262.42; 3 years from due date of report 

Merged several records into one record 
series, updated short description and 
retention.

Reporting Hazardous Waste Hazardous Waste Inspections & Reports
Includes hazardous waste manifest itself and hazardous waste disposal 
receipts; inspections, biennial reports, chemical emissions reports, 
exception reports, and others related to hazardous waste disposal.

CY+4 PERM Y/N 40 CFR 262.40(b); 3 years from due date of report

Merged into one Hazardous Waste record 
series.

Reporting Hazardous Waste Inspections CY+4 Y

Merged into general log record series. Reporting Hazardous Waste Manifests PERM Y

Added short description. Reporting Incident Reports Incident specific - blood borne pathogen Incident specific - blood borne pathogen report T+30 T+30 Y OSHA

Merged into one Injection Well record series. Reporting Injection Well Calibration Report of Injection well 
monitoring equipment

LOS+2 Y

5 years from date of sample, measurement or report throughout 
operating life of well.  Records must be retained after retention 
period unless delivered to EPA  Division 9 Director or written 
approval from Director to discard is obtained.

Merged into one Injection Well record series. Reporting Injection Well Injection waste water samples Quarterly or monthly samples LOS+2 Y

5 years from date of sample, measurement or report throughout 
operating life of well.  Records must be retained after retention 
period unless delivered to EPA  Division 9 Director or written 
approval from Director to discard is obtained.

Update record series name from "Calibration 
Report of Injection well monitoring 
equipment" to merge in all associated 
records; updated retention.

Reporting Injection Well Injection Well Reports & Samples

Includes quarterly or monthly samples; permit to operate issue by the 
State of California and/or County, monthly inspection reports, MIT 
(mechanical integrity testing reports), calibration of injection well 
monitoring equipment reports, etc.
Permit to operate issue by the state and / or County, monthly inspection 
reports, MIT (mechanical integrity testing reports), etc.

LOS+2 LOP+2 Y

5 years from date of sample, measurement or report throughout 
operating life of well.  Records must be retained after retention 
period unless delivered to EPA  Division 9 Director or written 
approval from Director to discard is obtained.

Merged into equipment history record series. 
Updated short description to merge in 
inspection records.

Reporting Operations Transformer History Records In CMMS; includes system output, maintenance records, etc. LOS+2 N 18 CFR § 125.3(14)©; life of transformer

Merged into general Reports and Studies 
listing.

Reporting Operations Reports Annual Load/Resource Planning Forecast 
(10 year) & Risk Assessments 

Excel output from Plexos Database AA+6 Y

Added short description and legal citation. Reporting Operations Reports Arc Flash Engineering Evaluation Arc Flash Engineering Evaluation SUP SUP+2 Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum. 

Merged into Resource, Station, & System 
reports and logs record series

Reporting Operations Reports Clearance logs; hydro-electric; steam and 
others; switching logs

Logs kept in and out of the Operator Plant Logging system CY+25 Y/N 18 CFR § 125.3(13.1)(c)(1); 25 years

Merged into general reports and studies 
listing.

Reporting Operations Reports Daily Report CY+6 Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines; 
Current year plus 2

Merged into equipment history record series. 
Updated short description to merge in 
inspection records.

Reporting Operations Reports Equipment history records In CMMS LOS+2 N

Merged equipment and transformer history 
records into one record series.
2014: updated retention period based on 
legal counsel recommendation.

Reporting Operations Reports Equipment History Records
Equipment and transformer records; in CMMS; includes system output, 
maintenance records, inspections, etc. LOS+2 LOS+2 N

History records: 18 CFR § 125.3(14)(c); life of transformer; 
Inspection records: 18 CFR § 125.3(14)(d) destroy at option; GC 
§ 34090; 2 years

Merged into one Gauge Reading record 
series. Reporting Operations Reports Gauge reading data CMMS and PI data and historical gauge strip charts LOP+2 N

18 CFR § 125.3(13.1)(f); 2 years except river flow data collected 
in connection with operation must be retained for life of 
corporation



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 26 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

Updated short description and name of 
record series from "Gauge Reading Data".

Reporting Operations Reports Gauge Reading Logs & Data Includes CMMS and PI data and historical gauge strip charts; associated 
gauge reading logs.

LOP+2 LOP+2 Y/N
18 CFR § 125.3(13.1)(f); 2 years except river flow data collected 
in connection with operation must be retained for life of 
corporation

Added legal citation. Reporting Operations Reports Gauge reading reports
Historical (and current) Hard copy sheets, such as operator rounds. 
Some would be in SharePoint. CY+2 CY+2 Y/N GC 34090; 2 years minimum.

Added short description. Reporting Operations Reports Hydro River Flow Data
Data, reports, and field observations; including supporting 
documentations. Saved in SharePoint, Aquarius and PI . PERM PERM Y/N 18 CFR § 125.3(13.1)(f); life of corporation

Added legal citation. Reporting Operations Reports Lock Out Tag Out (Clearances) In Red Tag system; does not include stored procedure in red tag system CY+2 CY+2 N GC 34090; 2 years minimum.

Merged into general Reports and Studies 
listing. Reporting Operations Reports

Monthly Load/Resource Planning Forecast 
& Risk Assessments 

Includes the master spreadsheet that is updated monthly and various 
spreadsheets created from the data and sent to various groups (for 
example, forecast for billing)

AA+6 Y

Merged into one internal & external reports, 
studies, & surveys record series.

Reporting Operations Reports Power Content Labels & analysis Content Labels are a filing with CEC done by Members and NCPA 
keeps a copy

CY+7 Y

Reporting Operations Reports
Production – Public utilities & licensees (non-
nuclear)

Boiler-tube failure report; generating high-tension and low-tension load 
records; load curves, temperature logs, coal, and water logs CY+3 CY+3 Y 18 CFR § 125.3(13.1)(a, b, d, e) 3 years; 

Reporting Operations Reports Records of transformer inspections, oil 
tests, etc.

In CMMS LOP+2 N 18 CFR § 125.3(14)(d) destroy at option; GC § 34090; 2 years

Merged into general reports and studies 
listing.

Reporting Operations Reports Resource Reports Includes FA 3.03 Hydro (accounting for water shares) CY+6 Y

Updated description and record series title. Reporting Operations Reports
Resource, Station, & System Generation 
Reports & Logs

Generation and output logs with supporting data, including clearance, 
hydroelectric, steam, switching, and other logs; generation report is in 
SharePoint; logs kept in and out of the Operator Plant Logging system.

CY+25 CY+25 Y 18 CFR § 125.3(13.1)(c)(1); 25 years

new listing Reporting Operations Reports Steamfield Forecast and Operations 
Reports

LOP+2 Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines, 
Agency-Owned Facilities, life of plant plus 2 years.

Reporting OSHA OSHA 300 Logs Completed OSHA 300 forms posted to OSHA CY+5 CY+5 Y 29 CFR 1904.33(a); current year plus 5

Merged into PERS Filings records series; 
duplicate Reporting Payroll Reports Mandated Payroll Reports PERS payroll reports AA+8 Y

GC 34090; 2 years minimum; GC 37207; Maintain; GC 12946; 2 
years after termination; 29 CFR 516.2-6; 4 years after tax return 
filing; 29 CFR 1627; 3 years; State of California Guidelines; 
current year plus 2

Merged into one internal & external reports, 
studies, & surveys record series. Reporting Regulatory Filing

Capacity balance (for example, RA 
requirements) CY+7 Y

Added legal citation and updated record 
series and description.

Reporting Regulatory Filing EEO1 Report EEO4 Survey Annual EEO1 EEO4  filing (State and Local Government Report) CY+5 CY+5 Y

42 USC sec. 2008-8(c): Public Law 88-352, Title VII of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, as amended by the Equal Employment 
Opportunity Act of 1972;  reports and information be retained for 
a period of 3 years.  (29 CFR 1602.30)

Removed; duplicate. Reporting Regulatory Filing EPA Electronic Data Reporting Files (EDR) CY+7 Y

Reporting Regulatory Filing Mandated Costs Filing
Filings with State of California for reimbursement of mandated programs 
(i.e., Brown Act postings) AA+10 AA+10 Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum; CCP 337; Statute of limitations; 
State of California Guidelines; 4 years after audit; Administrative 
Decision: 10 years after audit

Reporting Regulatory Filing PERS Reports Filings with PERS AA+10 AA+10 Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum; GC 12946; 2 years after 
termination; State of California Guidelines; Permanent

Updated short description and added legal 
citation. Reporting Regulatory Filing

Regulatory Reports filed with outside 
agencies (Compliance)

Reports filed by NCPA with Regulatory Agencies, including CEC, 
CPUC, FERC, NERC, ARB, WCI, CAISO. Does not include those tied to 
the Hydro FERC License.

CY+15 CY+15 Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum.



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 27 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

Reporting Regulatory Filing
Statements of Economic Interest and 
Lobbyist Employer - Forms 635 & 700

Includes all FPPC forms and schedules for all designated positions 
including designated employees, consultants, and commission of the 
Agency.  Agency Secretary is the Filing Officer and retains the original 
forms and schedules.

T+7 T+7 Y
GC 81009(e); 7 years; State of California guidelines for originals; 
7 years after termination; Copies for 4 years

Reporting
Risk Management 
Reports Incident reports

Theft, arson, vandalism, property damage or similar occurrence 
(excluding fire/law enforcement); Includes OSHA reportable incidents 
and internal investigation of accidents, police reports, incident write-ups, 
etc. 

AC+10 AC+10 Y
GC 34090; 2 year minimum; CCP 343, Statute of limitations, 4 
years; State of California guidelines; after closure/completion 
plus 7 years

Updated short description and retention. Reporting Safety Reports Noise Exposure Measurements Reports
Various documents related to a study stemming from an environmental 
or notice of complaint; some are in CMMS and others in SharePoint CY+2 SUP+2 Y/N  29 CFR 1910.95(m)(3)(i);  2 years 

Added legal citation. Reporting Safety Reports Safe Work Permit Reports Reports related to the internal permit and safety procedure CM+6 Months CM+6 Months N GC 34090; 2 years minimum.

Added legal citation and description. Reporting Safety Reports Safety points Reports Safety points Reports CY+2 CY+2 Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum.

Merged into one internal & external reports, 
studies, & surveys record series.

Reporting Studies CAISO LMP Studies, LMP3B, LMP3C, etc. CY+7 Y

Merged various records into one Reports & 
Studies record series and updated the short 
description. 

Reporting Studies Internal & External Reports, Studies, & 
Surveys

Reports or studies prepared internally and by outside agencies not 
captured in another record series; includes various ad-hoc reports, 
power content label and analysis, capacity balancing filing (i.e., RA 
requirements for CAISO), resource investigations and analysis, 
transmission studies, surveys; special studies (e.g., CAISO and ABB 
LMP/CRR studies, LOAs, FA & PA schedule development, fuel 
contracting & analysis, market analytics, etc.); the master forecast 
spreadsheet updated monthly and various spreadsheets created from 
the data and sent to various groups (for example, forecast for billing); 
Excel output from Plexos Database; examples include annual 10 year 
load forecast, market conditions, monthly load forecast, risk 
assessments, etc.; FA 3.03 Hydro (accounting for water shares, 
supporting documentation for Steamfield Forecast & Operations 
Reports, etc.;  daily operational reports.
Reports or studies prepared internally and by outside agencies

CY+7 CY+7 Y
GC 34090; 2 year minimum; 2 year minimum; State of California 
guidelines; Administrative Record; current year plus 2; 18 CFR 
125.3(38); 5 years

Merged into one internal & external reports, 
studies, & surveys record series.

Reporting Studies LMP_CRR studies by ABB NCPA and/or Consultant documents CY+7 Y

Merged into one internal & external reports, 
studies, & surveys record series.

Reporting Studies Reports of annual transmission planning 
studies

Includes PG&E Transmission Assessment Reports, ISO Planning 
Studies, etc.

CY+7 Y

Merged into one internal & external reports, 
studies, & surveys record series. Reporting Studies Resource investigations & analysis CY+7 Y

Merged into one internal & external reports, 
studies, & surveys record series. Reporting Studies Special Studies

Includes LOAs, CRR, FA & PA Schedule development, fuel 
contracting/analysis, Market analytics, etc. CY+7 Y

Merged into one Tax Filings record series. Reporting Tax Filing Filings with taxing authorities to qualify 
employee benefit plans

AE+5 AF+10 Y Citations: 18 CFR § 125.3(34()b); 5 years after discontinuance of 
plan



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 28 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

Merged into one tax filing record series. Reporting Tax Filing Tax and information reporting and/or filings Property tax, sales, use, 1099 misc., and other taxes;  does not include 
payroll taxes

AA+4 AF+5 Y 18 CFR § 125.3(34)(a)-(c); 3 years after final tax liability is 
determined; State of California guidelines after audit plus 4

Updated retention to match audit retention. 
Updated short description and merged 
payroll, benefit filings, and other taxes into 
one record series.

Reporting Tax Filing
Tax Filings
Payroll Tax Returns

Filings with IRS, State of California, and other Regulatory Agencies; 
including W-2, property, sales, use, 1099 misc., filings with taxing 
authorities to qualify employee benefit plans, and other taxes.
Filings with IRS, State of California, and other Regulatory Agencies

AA+8 AF+10 Y

Payroll Tax Filings: GC 34090; 2 year minimum; 29 USC 436; 5 
years; 26 CFR 31.6001; 4 years after tax return is filed; 29 CFR 
516.2-6; Maintain at least 3 years; State of California Guidelines; 
4 years after audit; Administrative Decision: 8 years after audit;
Other Tax Filings: 18 CFR § 125.3(34)(a)-(c); 3 years after final 
tax liability is determined; State of California guidelines after 
audit plus 4;
Benefit Filings: 18 CFR § 125.3(34()b); 5 years after 
discontinuance of plan

Merged into one tax filing record series. Reporting Tax Filing W-2/1099 Reporting AA+8 Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum; 29 USC 436; 5 years; 26 CFR 
31.6001; 4 years after tax return is filed; 29 CFR 516.2-6; 
Maintain at least 3 years; State of California Guidelines; 4 years 
after audit; Administrative Decision: 8 years after audit

Merged into one waste water discharge 
reports and data record series; updated 
description.

Reporting
Waste Water 
Discharge Annual Waste Water Discharge Sampling CY+3 Y Per Specific Plant Permit

Merged into one waste water discharge 
reports and data record series; updated 
description.

Reporting
Waste Water 
Discharge Monthly Discharge Report CY+3 Y Per Specific Plant Permit

Merged into one waste water discharge 
reports and data record series; updated 
description.

Reporting
Waste Water 
Discharge Quarterly Waste Water Discharge Sampling CY+3 Y Per Specific Plant Permit

Merged into one waste water discharge 
reports and data record series; updated 
description.

Reporting
Waste Water 
Discharge Sewage and Storm water use and disposal CY+3 Y

GC 34090; 2 year minimum; State of California guidelines; 
Reports and studies may be destroyed after completion plus 2

Merged into one waste water discharge 
reports and data record series; updated 
description.

Reporting
Waste Water 
Discharge

Storm Water Sampling, measurements, 
monitoring CY+3 Y

40 CFR 122.41 (j)(2); sewage sludge use and disposal, 5 years, 
all others 3 years; 40 CFR 503; 5 years

Merged several records for waste water into 
one record series; updated retention period. Reporting Waste Water 

Discharge
Waste Water Discharge Reports & Data

Includes storm water sampling, measurements, monitoring; sewage and 
storm water use and disposal; quarterly waste water discharge 
sampling; monthly discharge report; annual waste water discharge 
sampling.

CY+3 CY+5 Y

General Reports: per specific Plant Permit;
Storm Water Sampling: 40 CFR 122.41 (j)(2); sewage sludge use 
and disposal, 5 years, all others 3 years; 40 CFR 503; 5 years;
Sewage & Storm Water Disposal: GC 34090; 2 year minimum; 
State of California guidelines; Reports and studies may be 
destroyed after completion plus 2.

Added legal citation and updated short 
description.

Software Code In house software source code (Production) Production software code written by NCPA staff.
In TFS server

LOS+2 LOS+2 N GC 34090; 2 years minimum.

Added legal citation. Strategic Plan Strategic Plans Agency and department strategic plans SUP+5 SUP+5 Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum; State of California Guidelines; 
Annual or strategic plans; superseded plus 2 years.

Removed minor category and updated short 
description.

Training Evidence Documentation on Technical and Safety 
Training Materials & Manuals

Includes safety training presentations, attendance lists, fossil books, 
system descriptions, quizzes; follows Local requirements, OSHA, and/or 
permits; also includes plant technical training.

CY+30 CY+30 Y OSHA

Merged with vendor agreement record series. Training Contractor Safety Orientation Form Contractor safety orientation checklists, attendance sheet, 
acknowledgement

[follow 
retention with 
the associated 
Agreement]

Y



Northern California Power Agency

Records Retention Schedule

Exhibit A 29 of 29
11/18/2016

AA= After Audit

AC= After Closure/Completion

AE= After Expiration

AF= After Filing

CM/CY= Calendar Month/Year

FY= Fiscal Year

SUP= Superseded

TEMP= Temporary

LOP= Life of Plant

LOS= Life of Software/System

T= Terminated

PERM= Permanent

Change Notes Major Category Minor Category Record Series Description
Previous 
Retention

Proposed 
Retention

on 
Share-
Point

Legal Citation

Added legal citation. Training Training Materials & Manuals
Includes training manuals, user guides, video/webinar tutorials, lecture 
notes, class handouts, presentations; not related to safety training. SUP+2 SUP+2 Y GC 34090; 2 years minimum.

Merged Deal Confirms and Investment 
Confirms record series into one record 
series; updated short description; updated 
major category and record series; added 
legal citation; updated retention period.

Transaction 
Confirmations Transaction Confirmations

Transaction confirmations related to commodities such as energy, gas, 
financial bookouts, etc.; investment confirmations, including trade 
tickets/confirmations. 

AE+6 AE+5 Y/N GC 34090; 2 years minimum.



































































































































































































23 
 RESOLUTION NO. 16-85  

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF THE 
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

 

COMMENDING 
 

CAROL GARCIA 
 

 
WHEREAS, Carol Garcia has diligently served the City of Roseville as City Council 

Member, Vice Mayor, and Mayor, member of the Northern California Power Agency 
Executive Committee, and past Chairperson and Commissioner the Northern California 
Power Agency; and  
 
 WHEREAS, since January 2007 Carol has gracefully, enthusiastically and 
thoughtfully served the City of Roseville on the Commission of the Northern California 
Power Agency; and 
 

WHEREAS, Carol persistently supports and promotes joint action approaches and 
solutions for the betterment of the Agency, its members, and the City of Roseville; and  

 
WHEREAS, Carol was a strong presence and passionate advocate for the Northern 

California Power Agency issues both in Sacramento and in Washington, D.C.; and  
 
WHEREAS, Carol devotedly serves the interests of her community through 

numerous activities and organizations bringing about innovative approaches and solutions 
to improve the quality of life for the City of Roseville; and  

 
WHEREAS, Carol has diligently supported efforts to transform the energy resources 

and sustainability of the Northern California Power Agency and its members, while staying 
focused on the cost impacts to the ratepayers; and  

  
WHEREAS, Carol has won an everlasting place in the hearts of our Agency, members 

and staff; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the Northern California 
Power Agency, that this Agency, its members, and its employees heartily commend and 
thank Carol Garcia for her many years of attentive, dedicated and circumspect service to 
this Agency.  
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY ACCLAMATION, on this 1st day of December 2016.  
 
 
 

__________________________      _______________________________  
BOB LINGL                ATTEST:  CARY A. PADGETT 
CHAIR    ASSISTANT SECRETARY 


	Minutes_Spl_Mtg_Commission_102716
	Minutes_Commission_102716
	Commission_Meeting_Packet_Materials_120116
	Item_5_Facilities_Committee_Minutes
	Item_6_Finance_Committee_Minutes
	Item_10_Financial_Report
	Item_11_Treasurers_Report
	Item_12_Sale_Disposal_Surplus_Property
	Item_13_Committee_Calendar_2017
	Item_14_NCPA_Major_Insurance_Renewals_Policy_Year_2017
	Minutes_Spl_Mtg_Commission_102716
	Minutes_Commission_102716
	Item_15_Revised_Records_Retention_Policy
	Item_15_Policy_Redline_Version
	Item_16_Approve_Investment_Policy_Guidlines_Delegate_investment_Duties_Treasurer_Controller
	Item_17_FY2016_Annual_Billing_Settlements
	Item_18_GP_Crane_Hoist_Services
	Item_19_Geothermal_Sulfur_Product_Sales
	Item_20_Finance_Committee_Appointments
	Item_21_Agency_Inhouse_General_Counsel_Position_Job_Classification
	Item_22_Approval_Interim_Revenue_Allocation
	Item_23_Carol_Garcia


